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F AR A Our Organization

¥R (P12 & As at 31 March 2008, the
=P p) R B R Organization employed 113 regular
RO113 4 > fepr R 1 130 staff and 130 casual workers. The
Ao R A T e organization chart is at Appendix 1.
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FAECR J-S e D X VMO office building and
RS B wholesale vegetable market




Eea | Our Vision

A AET AFEEL DR To provide the community with a
B AR AR AT reliable and plentiful supply of safe
FEFE M B fREE AR L L and quality vegetables and to facilitate
EIVEEHEE the sustainable development of local
agriculture.
i Our Mission
B R SR BB To manage the wholesale vegetable
¥ Ao R R market  with  professionalism,
B Mg 3o 1 dedication, courtesy and efficiency to :
AN
® secure the efficient and orderly
® 757?‘ F j“”ﬁ ;jf" * wholesale marketing of safe and
i i%?‘:ii;fj}m L quality vegetables;
R i ® provide a fair and healthy

SR E R E
® WAL T AL LR A
BEFE o

marketing  environment  for
traders to conduct business; and

® plough back surplus for the
improvement of local
agriculture.
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Rain shelter project
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The Marketing Advisory
Board

The Director of Marketing is
assisted by the statutory Marketing
Advisory Board appointed by the
Chief Executive. During the
financial year of 2007/08, the
Board discussed and advised the
Director on important issues
including annual financial
estimates of VMO and its
Agricultural Development Fund,
general business operation and
reports of VMO, and progress of
agricultural development projects
jointly launched by VMO and
AFCD. The membership and

terms of reference of the Board are
at Appendix 2.




PRAS 5 F] OUR SERVICES

e EF Vegetable Wholesaling
S B R EMHEEIR VMO mainly provides wholesale
2 B E R A services and a platform to vegetable
BHIELE T CRE PR wholesalers and buyers for wholesale
BEFLE o F 2@?’ FER trading through its wholesale market at
P g e 10%F Cheung Sha Wan. VMO charges
mHRE AL g €L'f‘"% ¥ wholesalers a commission up to 10%
A ff‘% s ﬁ'm ’JH%& of the total value of all sales for the

e mPR%z» £
Jeb & ﬁ’»rﬁ 4% e o

provision of trading facilities,
accounting and pesticide residue
testing services, and rebates them up to
4% of the commission for services not

required.

Fr “ Unloading of vegetable
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Premium Vegetables

Premium \egetable Section (PVS) is
set up to help local farmers market
their  fresh, quality and safe
vegetables to up-market caterers such
as hotels, restaurants, elderly homes,
supermarkets and lunch box suppliers
through sale networks established by
the Organization. The PVS selects,
processes and packs vegetables

according to customers
specifications and delivers them to

customers by refrigerated trucks.

The Premium Vegetable Packaging
Center has recently been certified by
the Hong Kong Organic Resource
Centre as meeting the standards for
processing organic products, and was
granted the “Organic Processing
Certificate” and “Organic  (In
Conversion) Processing Certificate”

from.
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Monitoring of Pesticide
Residues on Vegetables

VMO has been operating a pesticide
residues laboratory at the market since
1998 to provide quality assurance to its
clients. Consignments found to be
contaminated with pesticide residues are
referred to the Food, Environmental and

Hygiene Department for follow-up action.
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Supporting Local Agriculture

VMO works in partnership with AFCD to
promote local agricultural development
through programmes like the Accredited
Farm Scheme, Organic Farming
Conversion Scheme and Land
Rehabilitation Scheme. It also ploughs
back its surplus to establish the Agricultural
Development Fund to support agricultural
programmes and development projects.
Currently the Fund has a capital of $130
million. During the year, it dispensed
$21,070,702 to support various agricultural
development  projects, including the
promotion of organic farming,
improvement of VMO’s market facilities,
and organization of different promotion
activities such as FarmFest 2008.

VMO’s Agricultural Products Scholarship
Fund aims at promoting education and
training in agriculture. The Fund currently
has a total capital of $8 million and offers
scholarship grants and loans to students
pursuing agriculture and related studies. It
also provides financial support for farmers’
children to pursue better education. In
2007/08, it issued $220,000 in scholarship
grants and loans to 11 eligible students.
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$11,274,651 ~ -

The Auditors’ Report, Balance Sheet,
Income and Expenditure Account, Cash
Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in
Funds and Notes to the Financial
Statement of the Agricultural Products
Scholarship Fund for the financial year
2007/08 are at Appendices 10 to 15
respectively.

Furthermore, VMO has set aside
$2,608,000 to establish the VMO Loan
Fund to provide credit facilities to farmers
as operational capital. During the year, it
issued 19 loans totaling $820,000. As at 31
March 2008, the Fund had a capital and
accumulated surplus of $11,274,651.




7ARRE 1R Infrastructure improvement -k 4|1 42 Irrigation improvement
project project

AAFEgRZ Supporting the setting  #c & 3R & (TALE 6 Improvement of facilities
up of Greenhouses for vegetable marketing
co-operative societies

RRCE: Participation in trade exhibitions
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Supporting Agricultural
Development Projects

Accredited Vegetables

VMO and the Agriculture, Fisheries
and Conservation Department (AFCD)
have been jointly running the
Accredited Farm Scheme since 1994.
The scheme accredited vegetables
farms in Hong Kong or Guangdong
Province operated by Hong Kong
citizens for adoption of good
horticultural practices and proper use of
pesticides.

Accredited vegetables are sampled and
tested to ensure that there is no excess
pesticide residue before distribution for
sale at retailer outlets designated by
VMO. Consumers can identify these
outlets by the VMO *accredited
retailers” logo carried by the retailers.

As at 31 March 2008, 225 farms
(including 32 farms in Guangdong
Province) covering a total area of 1939
ha had been accredited. Local
accredited farms are located at the main
production areas including Ta Ku Ling,
Tsiu Keng, Ng Ka Tsuen, Sheung Shui,
Castle Peak, Shek Kong, Kwu Tung,
Ping Shan, Fung Kat, Tuen Mun and
Lam Tei. The average daily supply of
accredited produce was 100 tonnes. At
present, there are 250 accredited retail
outlets located in different districts to
facilitate consumers shopping for
accredited vegetables.




R A B g Accredited farmer using
Bind & vacuum suction to control
plant pest

Accredited retailer
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FWEFE Organic Vegetables

WA T A Organic farming adopts
P24 o RS- knowledge-based farming methods
R Y Rl is derived from modern understanding
TR o A i AT of biology and ecology, and stresses
PR R gfé g e nature conservation and harmony
Sl e R E o 2 7 ¢ with the environment.  Organic
i &ﬂ&}éﬁﬁé—l ’ farmers do not wuse chemical
M F Ao FE S h AP 7 fertilizers and  pesticides  or
WERE K li:”ﬁ ¥ T genetically modified seeds.
N . =

iﬁiﬁﬁ ;Ef: WT ni ?i}i AFC-D' and VMO t.1ave been. jointly
2 3 TR T S providing .supportlng serwces to

B o m F D A B Y local organic farmers. While AFCD
# 7B W AR LS P B o provides technical support, VMO

develops and arranges marketing

N N =R ] ;;;;sz%fr channels with potential for higher
BN 8 E R B i return for local organic farmers.

ﬁx){@m@?ﬁm,’ e ;‘tv’
"”E“/”\ Bdre ZoRBE VMO  collects fresh  organic

e ’f]]:}” X %ﬂ"* AT 2 vegetables every day directly from
alﬁ iﬁj? /% R A farms to its Premium \egetable
L ? AR AT Packing Centre for grading and
;z_ iﬂh R }?’@ﬁr kS5 packaging. The organic produce will

then be delivered to hotels, hospitals
and designated retail outlets including
supermarket chains, shops at MTR
stations and health food kiosks for
sale.
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Organcfarm
in Ng Ka Tsuen

As at 31 March 2008, 110 farms in
Pat Heung, Sheung Shui, Tai Kong
Po, Tai Po, Tuen Mun, Ng Ka Tsuen,
Ping Che, Fanling, Fung Kat, Shap
Pat Heung, Sun Tin and Tsuen Wan
covering a total area of about 44 ha
had joined this Service. Together they
produce some 4 tonnes of organic
vegetables daily.

During the year, VMO actively
participated in various food fairs and
trade exhibitions including the Hong
Kong Flower Show and Food Expo to

promote local organic produce.

7 B

Organic farm
in Shek Kong
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Introduction of New
Varieties of Vegetables

Apart from expanding the sale
network for fresh vegetables, VMO
also actively promotes new /
improved vegetable varieties to the
public. New / improved vegetable
varieties become widely known
among the public through various
promotional activities, exhibitions
and the sale network of the Premium
Vegetable Section. Examples of the
new / improved varieties include
seedless water melon, green peel

baby pumpkin and strawberry.




Seedless water melon

Organic strawbr
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Promotional Activities

During the year, VMO promoted local
vegetables through various channels,
including the launch of “New ldeas of
Cooking Local Fisheries Products and
Vegetables”, the running of sale booths
at Flower Shows and Food Expo, the
conduct of promotional activities at
schools,  supermarkets, residential
estates and offices of commercial
enterprises, and the organization of
FarmFest 2008.

In addition, VMO also published “Fish
| Vegetable Marketing Organizations
Newsletter” for its institutional clients
to enhance their understanding of the
Organizations and their products.




B G ERTE D “New Ideas of Cooking
PAFHEL Local Fisheries Products ¥k &,
and Vegetables”

Promotional activities
at offices of large
enterprises

4T U A B Sale booth at
Flower show
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A A4 e Promotional activities at
R 5 supermarkets




i B FRB Improvement of Market
Environment
F s BT S 'ﬁ VMO regularly maintains and
BT ii‘fﬁi‘;t o ﬂ‘ﬁ )2?‘. =3 renovates its Cheung Sha Wan
B pr RV EEPED S Vegetable Market to provide a good
BE BB E AT AR trading environment to its clients
AP P S B A U 3 S and staff. During the year, VMO
FEAETFEN FRZE AR completed various projects including
PHAEPRTAR AT o upgrading its Accounting System,

installing new air purification
system  and improving  the
closed-circuit television system.

ECH- SO SO N System upgrade of VMO
Accounting System

Closed-circuit television
system




SR IEUh Performance and

Achievement

B-FRE--ZFTFENERFZ R In 2007-08, the VMO market
ol . . remained the largest and the busiest
Fel? B A BB P Aok L+ @ g )
fresh vegetables wholesale market in

ATHEER IR D o LA Hong Kong. Throughput in the
s £ 189,076 v > year reached 189,076 tonnes,

representing some 30% of all

B8R 300 o Akl PIESETINg ’
vegetables consumed in Hong Kong.

230 #2676 L R It provided services to 230

P PRI T R BRI B E S wholesalers and 1,676 buyers and

supplied premium vegetables to 150
150 B8 & 4% = 2 250 PRIEE P :
contract customers and 250

’JIP;' TREFEF- YT ok ] accredited retailers. Detailed
FEEE R % 5% H pug ,% information on the throughput by
N . quantity, value and price is at
v]oé, ?\‘} 3{*\‘1 K'T—[D' = _
Appendix 3.
Mt £ RS EDFARL VMO had a surplus of $31,202,620
$31,202,620 ~ > % B cifndkc at the end of the year. The Auditors'
WA 3 o Report, Balance Sheet, Income and
i s 7 m %~ 2
F CEART fex % Expenditure Account, Statement of
PR ARERFEL -RENE Changes in Funds, Cash Flow
% 2 PAARAR 4 HpiA ] ;g Statement and Notes to the Financial

Statement for the financial year
2007-08 are at Appendices 4 to 9

respectively.

s 34




HK$ (Million)

> & P 4 F oo
Summary of Annual Throughput

3,000 r

2,464
2,500 -

1,989

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08

T Year

I {H=£iEl (100 [B) Throughput (100 tonnes) WY~ Bt T Number of buyers

B A 2 B Lk
Summary of surplus and expenditure

60.0 r

506 50.1 186 479 50.2

50.0

N
o
o

w
o
o

20.0

10.0

0.0
03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08

T Year

L Foad=3 (FII‘EJJ%) Surpluses ($million) = FHEFHY (FII}E'JJ%) Operational expenses ($million)




YR A K Meeting Future Challenges

In the near future, VMO still needs
to face challenges such as low
TEPY B o B el % fr3 wholesale vegetable price and the
growing trend of direct distribution

B Ak FEpimkha %

% ‘,% E_f__’_.,;:a—-«;-.; ‘:» 25 o 24 . "
TH e EE R BRI o & of vegetables to retail without

B F Sk TR e going through the wholesale
market. As such, VMO has to

HHE TR > MR D Fox continue  to improve  its

HE LR CREL B IR competitiveness and efficiency.

P o In the coming year, VMO will

expand its laboratory, continue to

renovate the market and revamp its
RE Jak-€ P iV B R website. In addition, VMO will

continue to assist local vegetable
HH L HRE A LRTE farmers to expand their market and
develop a local brand name.

- BATFE St o ¥ F
B MF R A FRLIRR
B Hfodtis B R A8 A
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New VMO web site - 2 Laboratory expansion
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Visitors

In  2007/2008, the following institutional
delegations and visitors visited VMO:

Agriculture Bureau of Hainan Province, China

Agriculture Bureau of Jiangmen, China

Anhui Provincial Commission of Agriculture,
China

Animal & Plant Health Inspection Service,
USA

Café de Coral Group

"Cooking for Life" the Renowned Chef
Mr. Martin Yan

Jiangxi Entry-Exit Inspection & Guarantee
Bureau, China

Hae Nam City Council, Korea

Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education

Ministry of Agriculture, China

Mr. Jiang Zengwei,Vice Minister, Ministry of
Commerce, China

Shenzhen Agricultural Products Co., Ltd.

ShenZhen Entry-EXxit Inspection and Quarantine
Bureau, China

The Church of Christ in China Hoh Fuk Tong
College

Agricultural Affairs Committee of Tianjin
Municipal Party Committee, China
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Visit by Agriculture % R #: {8 4~ ¥ Sk PR A% i
Bureau of Hainan Province, jrz»
China

Visit by the B 735 7530 838 &
Renowned Chef % s 7 £ 4 453+
Mr. Martin Yan

Visit by Shenzhen e 4 ¥ EFED
Agricultural Products
Co., Ltd.

Visit by Animal & Plant
Health Inspection Service,
USA

Visit by Mr. Jiang Zengwei,
Vice Minister, Ministry of
Commerce, China

' Visit by The Church of
Christ in China Hoh
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Appendix 1

The Organization Chart of the Vegetable Marketing Organization

L e Jad i e
Director of Marketing

| SRR A
| Marketing Advisory Board
faR g *

General Manager
I
I I

g *
[t e HEH
Senior Manager Headquarters

ETTH AR T b= = B AT BB HEHEER
Premium Market Laboratory Accounts Headquarters Personnel Internal Supplies
Vegetable Operations Section Accounts Section Audit Section
Section Section Section
T HERE RS AT i RS A [l s MR T NEEE B EE HLHE A1

#O B Chief (E5i) (i) Chiefl Personnel Internal Auditor Supplies

Marketing Supervisory Market Market Accountant Officer Officer

Manager Officer Manager Manager
(Premium Vegetable) (Development) (Accounts)

SOfikE 132 {uikE S{NRE 46 (TERE 4 {irit 1 {ilik 2 fikE | fii

WMAEETLE W=EEIE ‘

8 Stafl’ 46 Stalrl 4 Staff 1 Staff 2 Staft 1 Staff
50 Stafl 132 Staff
in 2 shifts in 3 shifts

fifit :  * 7E20084E3H31H » BERABMBM S IA R T 256N »
Hepf BAFRRRAEKERES T -

Remarks - * Total number of staff in VMO as at 31.3.2008 was 256 including
13 staff serving Fish/ Vegetable Marketing Organization,



AR ER g2 2 F 2

F g =

Appendix 2
B AR o [F]

MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE OF
THE MARKETING ADVISORY BOARD

B AE §° [F]

Terms of reference

SEBNLR A - B2 mE e LR é?‘uﬁﬁtfﬂ B ek TN - 2 ER o e TRE TR

R Ao

The board is a statutory consultative body for advising the Chief Executive upon any matters referred to it by

the Chief Executive or the Director of Marketing.

Rg =
bershlp

EW: ]

Chairman

BE UG A T 1

Ms. CHEUNG Siu-hing, J.P.

= R
Members

S SE Nl
Mr. TANG Nuen-fun

FopEL A
Mr. TANG Yuk-wah

Bdop £ 4
Mr. LAW Yu-bor

Ak LA
Mr. CHAN Wing-on

k3 44 BBS, MH
Mr. CHEUNG Fo-tai, BBS, MH

0 U
Miss KUNG Yin-ha, Cecilia

PR R L
Dr. TANG Pui-yee

R hAA
Mr. YUEN Man-chun, Royce

( F Rk )
(Director of Marketing)

a-TE'LM?FQ')CML\”:‘ﬁl'—’)sFl 'IEE\“L\ Bﬁl;m:i“‘»
Chairman of the Federation of Vegetable Marketing
Co-operative Societies, Ltd.

A FEFAN L TG AT EHE ALY - BEEEL
The First Vice-Chairman of the Federation of Vegetable
Marketing Co-operative Societies, Ltd.

AR AL L FALG U I L BT - BIEE L
The Second Vice-Chairman of the Federation of Vegetable
Marketing Co-operative Societies, Ltd.

TERRFEF ISP EFRER
Managing Dlrector, Tai Hing Worldwide Development Ltd.

BAP T3 A7 EE
Director of Jackfair Co Ltd.

X /’J(—’}; LA ﬁi :ul;—
Managing Director, Ice Master Ltd.

AETLLAFERR D HF ek
Associate Professor, Department of Management and
Marketing, the Hong Kong Polytechnic University

REEB(AE)LA
Chairman, Ogilvy Hong Kong
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Appendix 3
EHEFRY A L FFER K L2 HE R R
QUANTITY, VALUE AND WHOLESALE PRICE OF FRESH VEGETABLES
MARKETED THROUGH THE VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
» » T B3t
LOCAL IMPORTED TOTAL
" E EE(E O EE) R i 4 B £ 2 (20) ¥ (%) B ERH R EE(CW) | ¥ E(R) Py
Togi(R) | ERLF A () |ER2FAF% T o (R)
Period Quantity (Tonne Value ($) Average Price Percentage of |Quantity (Tonne) Value ($) Average Price Percentage of |Quantity (Tonne Value ($) Average Price
per Kilogram ($)] Total Quantity per Kilogram ($) | Total Quantity per Kilogram ($)
marketed % marketed %
*1992/1993 to 1996/1997 34,674 101,453,322 2.93 14.7 200,681 824,396,616 411 85.3 235,355 925,849,938 3.93
*1997/1998 to 2001/2002 21,095 53,348,486 2.53 8.2 236,619 799,729,592 3.38 91.8 257,714 853,078,078 3.31
*2002/2003 to 2006/2007 7,292 18,946,894 2.60 3.2 222,758 783,924,314 3.52 96.8 230,050 802,871,208 3.49
April,2007 419 2,335,260 5.57 2.8 14,382 65,502,890 4.55 97.2 14,801 67,838,150 4.58
May,2007 498 1,752,179 3.52 3.0 16,085 60,395,063 3.75 97.0 16,583 62,147,242 3.75
June,2007 359 1,366,346 3.81 2.4 14,712 67,709,053 4.60 97.6 15,071 69,075,399 4.58
July,2007 388 1,265,842 3.26 2.3 16,157 66,665,977 4.13 97.7 16,545 67,931,819 411
August,2007 339 1,154,219 3.40 21 15,536 80,308,166 5.17 97.9 15,875 81,462,385 5.13
September,2007 238 933,947 3.92 15 15,517 82,222,468 5.30 98.5 15,755 83,156,415 5.28
October,2007 228 957,120 4.20 14 15,995 80,767,794 5.05 98.6 16,223 81,724,914 5.04
November,2007 305 1,400,734 4.59 1.8 16,293 69,273,917 4.25 98.2 16,598 70,674,651 4.26
December,2007 407 1,707,190 4.19 2.4 16,496 66,483,473 4.03 97.6 16,903 68,190,663 4.03
January,2008 365 1,868,185 5.12 2.2 16,088 79,685,918 4.95 97.8 16,453 81,554,103 4.96
February,2008 320 2,167,263 6.77 2.4 12,808 82,576,625 6.45 97.6 13,128 84,743,888 6.46
March,2008 534 2,275,685 4.26 35 14,607 73,597,360 5.04 96.5 15,141 75,873,045 5.01
B
TOTAL 4,400 19,183,970 4.36 2.3 184,676 875,188,704 4.74 97.7 189,076 894,372,674 4.73

5 &# T 15 #

* Average of 5 years
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Major Vegetables marketed through the Vegetable Marketing Organization
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Appendix 3A

Top 20 vegetables sold through the Cheung Sha Wan Wholesale Vegetable Market (By

weight)
Efh £E(7) & - i b F 358 ($7)
Species Weight (Catty) | Percentage of Sales Val‘u;($) Percentage Avg. Price
Total of Total ($/Catty)
! s 56,084,638 17.94% 203,226,974.20 22.72% 3.62
Flowering cabbage
2 . 2% 12,140,221 3.88% 25,547,917.00 2.86% 2.10
Chinese lettuce
3 W 11,459,063 3.67% 39,613,414.60 4.43% 3.46
Chinese kale
4 L 10,035,940 3.21% 24,315,337.30 2.72% 2.42
Red tomato
° .;C " 9,712,212 3.11% 23,946,641.30 2.68% 2.47
Hairy gourd
6 W h 9,335,730 2.99% 11,687,097.80 1.31% 1.25
lax gourd
! W i%. 9,264,597 2.96% 17,558,932.10 1.96% 1.90
later spinach
8 v F 0, 0
White cabbage 9,212,689 2.95% 24,047,566.30 2.69% 2.61
9 o
European varieties 8,915,573 2.85% 15,416,457.90 1.72% 1.73
cabbage
10 Sorimor 8,767,284 2.80% 26,947,588.90 3.01% 3.07
pring onion
il I 8,706,286 2.78% 27,027,833.40 3.02% 3.10
ite cabbage, small
12 B 7,693,862 2.46% 11,490,442.10 1.28% 1.49
Radish
13 : ¥ 7,353,985 2.35% 15,716,572.90 1.76% 2.14
Wong choi cabbage
14 A 7,258,116 2.32% 17,597,429.70 1.97% 2.42
Chinese spinach
-
15 L FUFE 6,024,897 1.93% 14,468,446.40 1.62% 2.40
White cabbage, green
16 & 5 5,997,950 1.92% 13,175,737.60 1.47% 2.20
Potato
17 oL 5,070,673 1.62% 16,239,210.20 1.82% 3.20
European lettuce
18 v 5,003,061 1.60% 15,763,289.30 1.76% 3.15
Bitter cucumber
19 A9 4,937,967 1.58% 11,853,152.90 1.33% 2.40
Carrot
RPN
20 Fr 4,661,121 1.49% 10,484,000.90 1.17% 2.25
Green cucumber
RH 207,635,865 66.42% 566,124,042.80 63.30% 2.73

Total
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Top 20 vegetables sold through the Cheung Sha Wan Wholesale Vegetable Market

(By value)
& £E(7) ®F 5 - 3 3o ($/7)
Species Weight Percentage B Percentage Avg. Price
(Catty) of Total | SalesValue(®) | = ¢ qopy ($/Catty)
1 * 56,084,638 17.94% 203,226,974.20 22.72% 3.62
Flowering cabbage
2 L 11,459,063 3.67% 39,613,414.60 4.43% 3.46
Chinese kale
3 v R
White cabbage, 8,706,286 2.78% 27,027,833.40 3.02% 3.10
small
4 L 8,767,284 2.80% 26,947,588.90 3.01% 3.07
Spring onion
4 x5
5 = F 12,140,221 3.88% 25,547,917.00 2.86% 2.10
Chinese lettuce
6 G 10,035,940 3.21% 24,315,337.30 2.72% 2.42
Red tomato
7 v F 0, 0
White cabbage 9,212,689 2.95% 24,047,566.30 2.69% 2.61
BN
8 o 9,712,212 3.11% 23,946,641.30 2.68% 2.47
Hairy gourd
9 £ v 1,978,102 0.63% 23,540,950.80 2.63% 11.90
Pea shoot
10 | RF 7,258,116 2.32% 17,597,429.70 1.97% 2.42
Chinese spinach
WoE
1 = 9,264,597 2.96% 17,558,932.10 1.96% 1.90
Water spinach
12 oA E
5,070,673 1.62% 16,239,210.20 1.82% 3.20
European lettuce
13 wh 5,003,061 1.60% 15,763,289.30 1.76% 3.15
Bitter cucumber
14 ¥
K 7,353,985 2.35% 15,716,572.90 1.76% 2.14
Wong choi cabbage
15 53
European varieties 8,915,573 2.85% 15,416,457.90 1.72% 1.73
cabbage
16 FuE
White cabbage, 6,024,897 1.93% 14,468,446.40 1.62% 2.40
green
17 il e
. 2,521,785 0.81% 14,370,388.40 1.61% 5.70
Broccoli
18 v
White cabbage, 3,589,626 1.15% 13,844,926.30 1.55% 3.86
flowering
19 &3
5,997,950 1.92% 13,175,737.60 1.47% 2.20
Potato
20 LA E
. 4,558,772 1.46% 12,607,314.70 1.41% 2.77
Italian lettuce
w2
gl 193,655,470 61.94% 584,972,929.30 65.41% 3.02

Total
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Appendix 4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE DIRECTOR OF MARKETING ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VEGETABLE
MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(established under the authority vested in the
Director of Marketing by the Agricultural Products
(Marketing) Ordinance, Chapter 277)

We have audited the financial statements of
Vegetable Marketing Organization (the
“Organization”) set out on Appendices 5to 9,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
March 2008, and the statement of income and
expenditure, statement of changes in funds and
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Director of Marketing’s responsibility for the
financial statements

The Agricultural Products (Marketing) Ordinance,
Chapter 277, requires the Director of Marketing
to keep proper accounts. The Director of
Marketing is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you in
accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Appendix 4
B e 2 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
FEAY A MBFLR a*u%' Rk TO THE DIRECTOR OF MARKETING ON THE
?f;f@z PR E B 0% 277 £ (R A &(:a4) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VEGETABLE

EG]) PR AR AUEE B @ A 2 MARKETING ORGANIZATION _

FOL) Y R i A ) (established under the authority vested in the
Director of Marketing by the Agricultural Products
(Marketing) Ordinance, Chapter 277)

PokpF g i () Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

FHE AR P M AMArdE 4 97§ £ Anaudit involves performing procedures to
FEHBFRDEPREE - 9T LA B o_btain audit _eviden_ce ab_out the amounts and

S HoEF R 0 & 4EIE I D At g A 42 a"—m disclosures in the financial statements. The
WP G E S B R G o procedures _select_ed depend on the audltor’s_

G R PET Y R A ﬁv?\li 4\ judgement, including the assessment of the risks
PR e M ‘@‘j TUP e ., .. Ofmaterial misstatement of the financial

L3 SIS R ARAR A AP B S0 p SRR 0 ST gatements, whether due to fraud or error.  In
BOFPARA o e 2L 5 A ) IR H making those risk assessments, the auditor
drti F AL R o T BT Ay ek considers internal control relevant to the entity’s

AR € Pt en g 2 friEd ené 3 5 preparation and fair presentation of the financial
Fen AL > 2 R M AR4R 4 cnfFAg s 4p + Statements in order to design audit procedures
;“ . that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Director of Marketing, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

AP ECEF AR G 0 AP EEF ATIE (B en % 18 3 A We believe that the audit evidence we have
DR AR AAPPE L LR EAAH obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

A Opinion
A EFFIL G 0 b a2 pAAR4F 4 ¢ 1395 4 B M4 4% In our opinion, the financial statements give a
FLEPEF A ST A AY A - 2%~ & trueand fair view of the state of affairs of the
Szl pREPIEARR 2 Ry AR Organization as at 31 March 2008 and of its
P ER DA AAE - surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.
REAAGE §HFERA (Signed) PricewaterhouseCoopers
HEETF Certified Public Accountants
B FRAEAT LD Hong Kong, 19 August 2008
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
CRRELE RS IS S

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

TAERE
BALANCE SHEET

¥ & ASSETS

£ind T A Non-current assets

#£ 2+ Leasehold land

¥ BEZ2XH  Property, plant and equipment

% 2Asf13+41F 2 Assets under defined benefit plan

g T & Current assets

% & Inventories

FERY AR &

Vegetable Marketing Organization("VMQO") Loans

[AR IRl CEE N

Trade and other receivables

AZEIW Y @ & P PP LT 5 AR

Bank deposits with maturities of more than three
months and within one year

RE&Z2M4EEH P Cashand cash equivalents

®F & Total assets

#4 FUNDS

- 4% & General Fund
% @4 Accumulated surplus

#wu X & Specific funds
FE S e f A £ VMO Loan Fund

PR Rl £ B A £ VMO Agricultural Development Fund

kB B EFE AL

Funds provided from external sources for capital expenditure

B4 & Total funds
g % LIABILITIES

iid g Non-current liabilities
£ ¥ PR5x £ ¥ #% Provision for long service payment

a# g Current liabilities

¥ % 2 2 ki Trade and other payables

£ PR3+ £ #%  Provision for long service payment
FEEF A 44 Vegetable buyers' deposits

¥4 F Total liabilities
WA £2 § § Total funds and liabilities

S bk

(Signed)Director of Marketing
3k /U v

Miss CHEUNG Siu-hing

g - FFAENT LA P
Hong Kong, 19 August 2008

e 9 L L APATRER & DERINA o

The notes on Appendix 9 is an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

17

10

11

12

13

14

16

15
16

ek T
Appendix 5

-%‘;:IJ:_J-_E

As at 31 March

2008 2007
690,522 708,153
9,588,907 9,142,812
2,188,000 285,000
12,467,429 10,135,965
243,921 244,132
821,329 1,668,357
14,549,133 11,816,821
382,250,000 375,400,000
13,390,291 9,404,517
411,254,674 398,533,827
423,722,103 408,669,792
289,915,818 318,713,198
11,274,651 11,020,973
96,894,264 52,679,047
1,764,104 1,764,104
399,848,837 384,177,322
7,504,629 6,308,610
7,504,629 6,308,610
11,077,283 12,667,181
123,806 589,532
5,167,548 4,927,147
16,368,637 18,183,860
23,873,266 24,492,470
423,722,103 408,669,792




HEERY &

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(F 7 5 5P oh o 955 £30 5 B

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)
A B 4

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

i
Note

£ ¥ 1§ Operating income

n £4zF Commission
w+ i1 Rebates

BFEFHLERE 19
Net income on sale of premium vegetables

B F & ¥4 8 Sale of premium vegetables

& b = & Cost of inventories sold

&5+ 41 Gross profit

E #5544 Direct operating expenses
His &4 Jx ¥ Other operating income
-8 S Non-trading income

F
#7341 412 Interestincome on bank deposits
4z % Other income

B4z Totalincome

Il Operating expenditure

22 H 457 Employee benefit expenditure 20(a)
T E '?;‘3 General working expenses

B4 -~ £4p2 FFEF * Rent, rates and permit fees 21
Erf) 2 2 B §  Printing and stationery

’J\' "{ Utility services

% i3 32 Maintenance and minor improvements

\+:

;S %L Vegetable baskets
* £ 2 2%  Stores and equipment

3 L 4 Miscellaneous expenses
R 14mf Staff welfare

a1 Staff training

4 # % Travelling expenses

[# # PR % $|PL  Protective clothing and uniforms
Ay '?P‘: Insurance

R #ckF Y £ Auditor's remuneration

W F-i%%  Market security

X% %# Balance carried forward
Wik 9 LS AR £ RIS o
The notes on Appendix 9 is an integral part of these financial statements.
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Appendix 6
Fr=r=z=Ll-prER
Year ended 31 March
2008 2007
89,437,428 82,082,956
(31,149,543) (28,595,252)
58,287,885 53,487,704
38,967,268 28,128,889
(29,113,854) (20,977,195)
9,853,414 7,151,694
(281,571) (61,572)
9,571,843 7,090,122
1,558,355 1,595,162
69,418,083 62,172,988
11,809,044 12,875,146
267,959 61,267
12,077,003 12,936,413
81,495,086 75,109,401

(34,823,321)

(32,753,360)

-1,645,241 -1,655,607
-432,841 -421,057
-984,350 -920,726

-3,939,624 -2,990,246

-49,972 -40,000
-772,537 -549,978
-328,941 -226,956
-297,270 -270,884

-29,475 -9,758
-128,232 -94,755

-23,851 -9,893
-185,644 -185,058
-257,100 -197,100
-438,956 -405,631

(9,514,034)  (7,977,649)

(44.,337,355)

(40,731,009)
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(%% Fpet s v B3R5 B

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

et % & & (H)
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE (Continued)

\&rY i u e vviur

G
Note

;«4

< % % Balance brought forward

(%) General working expenses (Continued)
Transportation expenses
%E%r.ﬁ’ Depreciation and amortisation
¥ a2 & iFALZpL 3 Subsidy to federation and co-operative societies
#p4 £ Grants-in-aid
|4 2 ¥ @ % Publication and publicity
PERE 2«, ¥ '*" * Legal and professional fees
8= Ph&; Bank charges
in £ 41 Commission expenses

‘—‘r“\ mw

¥R
o
¥z 5&6

R

ﬁ t= £ 1t Other expenditure
PE PR R D LS

Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 26(b)

#4  Total expenditure

* & R &Y ¥$7+F4 Operating surplus for the year

E T Z I(k542) © Net surplus /(deficit) from other activities:
% ¥ E 3 £ VMO Agricultural Development Fund 18
B34 £ VMO Loan Fund 22

fe“*@“‘ﬂ

* & R % @4 Total surplus for the year

BRI FEF Y i B 24 £ Surplus transferred to VMO Loan Fund
e GRS Rk FEEAE 8
Deficit transferred from VMO Agricultural Development Fund

~

AERERPAE - LR E 13
Net surplus for the year transferred to General Fund

e 9 R ARAIRIR & ORI A o
The notes on Appendix 9 is an integral part of these financial statements.
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Appendix 6

- PLER

Year ended 31 March

2008

(44,337,355)

(3,391,523)
(1,665,761)
(730,000)
(30,514)
(37,771)
(42,000)
(2,210)

2007

(40,731,009)

(3,193,214)
(3,105,697)
(688,083)
(149,728)
(44,659)
(6,800)
(2,160)
(13,234)

(50,237,134)

(47,934,584)

(55,332)

(95,158)

(55,332)

(95,158)

(50,292,466)

(48,029,742)

31,202,620

27,079,659

(15,784,783)
253,678

(11,472,043)
449,430

(15,531,105)

(11,022,613)

15,671,515 16,057,046

(253,678) (449,430)
15,784,783 11,472,043
31,202,620 27,079,659




FEEnY A
VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(45 %P oh > 2r4 £3E 5 BN

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

2006 4 5] 1| I5#% Balance at 1 April 2006
* & R 3% 24 Total surplus for the year

2007# 3% 31p % 2007# 4% 1p %%
Balance at 31 March 2007 and 1 April 2007

* & R % 24 Total surplus for the year

2008# 3% 31p %% Balance at 31 March 2008

W 9 HEEL G APAIRER A RN A o

The notes on Appendix 9 is an integral part of these financial statements.

'ﬁ‘@?‘ =
Appendix 7

Total funds

368,120,276

16,057,046

384,177,322

15,671,515

399,848,837
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(R ELEREE BT 3L

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)
REiErE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

G
Note
¥EZEH PR EmE Cash flows from operating activities

FiE(#r* )/A 4 3 & Cash (used in)/generated from operations  26(a)

FFEE R &E  Cash flows from investing activities

@ 42427 4| & Bank Interest received
B A B 4114 Loan Interest received
B~ ¥ - EZ2 X% Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6
NEPFE S PEZRGTERA 26(b)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment
A 3 BT oA LE PN DI PRE TR FRER
Net placement of bank deposits with maturities
of more than three months and within one year

FFREBAL /(¥ )E R £
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

REZRELFHFEH/(F2)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

ERREZREEY P
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

EXRREZIRERGF 12
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

W 9 LR AP FRAR A A REINA o
The notes on Appendix 9 is an integral part of these financial statements.
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Appendix 8

Year ended 31 March

2008 2007
-1,786,293 3,732,175
15,198,672 15,380,858

38,474 43,691
-2,647,979 -3,757,789
32,900 3,640
-6,850,000 -15,420,000

5,772,067 -3,749,600

3,985,774 -17,425

9,404,517 9,421,942
13,390,291 9,404,517
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise
stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information

The Vegetable Marketing Organization (the
"Organization") is formed under the  Agricultural
Products (Marketing) Ordinance, Chapter 277
which requires that, in the Kowloon Area and in
the New Territories Area, vegetables be bought or
sold wholesale at the wholesale vegetable market
operated by the Organization. A vegetable seller
shall pay to the Organization, for the services
provided in respect of such sale, a commission at
the rate of ten per cent of the price for which the
vegetables are sold.

The amount of commission income accruing to the
Organization therefore depends significantly on:

() the degree of the vegetable sellers’
compliance with the Agricultural Products
(Marketing) Ordinance by bringing their
produce into the Organization's market for
sale; and

the market conditions prevailing in the
market which influence the sale price of
the vegetables.

(ii)

The address of the Organization is 757 Lai Chi
Kok Road, Cheung Sha Wan Wholesale
Vegetable Market, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon.

These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated.
These financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Director of Marketing on 19
August 2008.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
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2.1 Basis of preparation
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The financial statements of the Organization
have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS") and under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Organization’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

(@ New standard and amendment to
published standard which are relevant
to the Organization and effective from
1 January 2007

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”, and the complementary
amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of Financial Statements - Capital
Disclosures” are mandatory for the
Organization’s accounting period
commencing on 1 April 2007 which the
Organization has adopted in these
financial statements. HKFRS 7
introduces new disclosures to improve
the information about financial
instruments. It requires the disclosure
of qualitative and quantitative
information about exposure to risks
arising from financial instruments,
including specified minimum
disclosures about credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk, including
sensitivity analysis to market risk. The
amendment to HKAS 1 introduces
disclosures about the level of an
entity’s capital and how it manages
capital. The adoption of HKFRS 7 and
the amendment to HKAS 1 does not
result in any significant change to the
Organization’s accounting policies
other than certain additional
disclosures.
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1

2.2

(b) Standards,

Basis of preparation (Continued)

amendments and
interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing
standards (collectively, the
“Amendments”) have been published
that are mandatory for the
Organization’s accounting  period
commencing from 1 April 2008 or
2009. Some of the Amendments are
relevant and applicable to the
Organization; however, they have not
been early adopted in these financial
statements. The Organization has
commenced, but not yet completed,
an assessment of the impact of the
applicable Amendments on its results
of operations and financial position.
The Director of Marketing is of the
view that the impact on the financial
statements will not be significant
other than  certain  additional
disclosures.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial
statements of the Organization are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in
which the Organization operates (“the
functional currency”). The financial

statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is both the
Organization’s functional and

presentation currency.
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2

2.3

24

Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Prepaid operating leases

Prepaid operating leases made for the
leasehold land are expensed in the
statement of income and expenditure on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease or when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Property, plant and equipment
Buildings comprise mainly offices and

market buildings. All property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost

less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the
Organization and that cost of the item can

be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All  other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the

statement of income and expenditure
during the financial year in which they are
incurred.
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4

25

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate their costs
to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings
- Cheung Sha Wan
Vegetable Market
- Buildings at depots

20 years
10 years

Furniture, fixtures and
computer equipment 5to 10 years
Motor vehicles

Machinery and others

5 years
5 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are
recognised within operating expenditure in
the statement of income and expenditure.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's -carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units).
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise
stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6 Loans

Loans are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of loans is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Organization will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original
terms of the loans. The amount of the
provision for impairment is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure of the VMO Loan Fund.

2.7 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost s
determined wusing the first-in first-out
(FIFO) method which mainly comprises
invoiced cost. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.8 Financial assets

The Organization classifies its financial
assets as loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are classified as
“YMO loans”, “trade and other
receivables”, “bank deposits with maturities
of more than three months and within one
year” and “cash and cash equivalents” in
the balance sheet.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

The Organization assesses at each
balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired.
Impairment testing of trade receivables is
described in note 2.9.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective
evidence that the Organization will not be
able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of
provision is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure within operating expenditure.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against other operating
income in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in

hand and bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less.
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.11 Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services
rendered by the employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement plan obligations

The Organization operates a defined
benefit plan, a defined contribution
plan and a mandatory provident fund
scheme ("MPF scheme") in Hong
Kong, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.
All three retirement plans are funded
by payments from employees and by
the Organization. For the defined
benefit plan, payments are made after
taking into account the
recommendations of independent
qualified actuary.

The Organization's contributions to
the defined contribution plan are
based on a fixed percentage of the
employees' income, whereas the
Organization's contributions to the
MPF scheme are based on a fixed
percentage of the employees'
relevant income. The
Organization also makes voluntary
contributions to the MPF scheme in
respect of those regular employees
who opted to join the scheme
voluntarily and the Organization's
contributions to both the defined
contribution plan and the MPF
scheme are expensed as incurred.
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise
stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.11 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Retirement plan obligations
(Continued)

The Organization's contributions to
the defined contribution plan are
reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

For the defined benefit plan, it defines
an amount of benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age and years of
services. The asset recognised in
the balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit plan is the fair value
of plan assets less the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance sheet date, together with
adjustments for unrecognised
actuarial gains or losses and past
service costs. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating
to the terms of the related liability.
Actuarial gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised over the average
remaining service lives of employees.
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise
stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.11 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Provision for long service payment

The Organization recognises provision
for long service payment to its
employees in accordance with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) upon
the termination of the employment, or
retirement when the employees fulfil
certain conditions and the termination
meets the required circumstances.
The provision is calculated based on
the long service payments that are
required to be made to the employees
by the Organization in respect of their
services up to the year end as reduced
by certain benefits arising from the
Organization's retirement plan.

2.12 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method.

2.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Organization has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount has been
reliably estimated.  Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise
stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.14 Revenue recognition

2.15

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Organization's activities.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

Commission income is recognised
based on the price of the vegetable
transactions  concluded in  the
Organization's market on an accruals
basis.

Commission income is reduced by
rebates which are recognised at rates
ranging from 3% to 4% based on the
price. of the same vegetable
transactions.

Sale of premium vegetables is
recognised as income upon delivery of
premium vegetables to the customer,
who has accepted the vegetables and
collectibility of the related receivables
is reasonably assured.

Interest income on bank deposits and
loans to farmers is recognised on a
time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Other income and other operating
income are recognised on an accruals
basis.

Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in
the statement of income and expenditure
on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.16 VMO Loan Fund and VMO Agricultural

Development Fund ("Funds")

The VMO Loan Fund was set up for making
loans to farmers for productive purposes.

The VMO Agricultural Development Fund
was set up for promoting local agriculture.

The income and expenditure relating to
these Funds are directly dealt with in the
respective statement of income and
expenditure. Any net surplus relating to
these Funds is transferred from the
statement of income and expenditure to
these Funds. Any net deficit relating to
these Funds is transferred to the statement
of income and expenditure from these
Funds.

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Organization’s activities expose it to
a variety of financial risks factors: foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
fair value and cash flow interest risk.
The Organization’s overall risk
management procedures focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and
seek to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Organization’s financial
performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where
future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not
the Organization's functional currency.
The Organization operates in Hong
Kong. In the opinion of the Director
of Marketing, the Organization has
minimal exposure to the foreign
exchange as the transactions are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and no sensitivity analysis is
performed accordingly.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management

3.1

(b)

(©)

(Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

The Organization has policies in place for
the control and monitoring of its credit
risk. The credit risk of the Organization
is primarily attributable to the loans to
farmers and trade and other receivables.

In respect of the loans to farmers,
individual evaluations are performed on all
borrowers. For each loan granting, the
Organization has policy to assess the
eligibility of the granting. Besides, the
Organization will make specific provision
for those balances which cannot be
recovered.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
the Organization has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit history. These
credit evaluations focus on the customers’
past history of making payment when due
and current ability to pay. The
Organization will make specific provision
for those balances which cannot be
recovered. The Organization does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In the opinion of the Director of Marketing,
the credit risk is considered to be low.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient bank deposits and
bank balances. In the opinion of the
Director of Marketing, the Organization
does not have any significant liquidity risk.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management

3.1

()

(d)

(Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk  (Continued)

The table below analyses the
Organization’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to
the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

As at 31 March 2008, the maturity analysis
of the financial liabilities is as follows:

2008 2007

Less than one

year

Trade and other

payables (Note

15) 10,026,438 11,644,515
Vegetable

buyers’ deposits 5,167,548 4,927,147

15,193,986 16,571,662

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than the bank deposits and the

VMO loans, the Organization has no
significant  interest-bearing assets or
liabilities.  The Organization’s income,

expenditure and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 March 2008, if interest rates on
the bank deposits had been 200 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, surplus for the year would
have been $7,657,000 (2007: $7,620,000)
higher/lower, as a result of higher/lower
interest income on the bank deposits.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise
stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2  Capital risk management

The Organization’s objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Organization’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The Organization’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

3.3  Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment
provision of loans, trade and other
receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the
Organization for similar financial
instruments, unless the effect of
discounting is insignificant.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

The Organization makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

Defined benefit plan

This applies where the Organization’s accounting
policy is to recognise any actuarial gains or losses
over the average remaining service lives of
employees immediately through the statement of
income and expenditure.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation
depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a nhumber
of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost/(income) for defined
benefit plan include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of defined benefit obligation.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
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(Continued)

Defined benefit plan  (Continued)

The actuary, HSBC Life (International) Limited,
determines the appropriate discount rate at the
end of each year. This is the interest rate that
should be used to determine the present value of
estimated future cash outflows expected to be
required to settle the defined benefit obligation. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, the
actuary considers the interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related defined benefit liability.

Other key assumptions for defined benefit
obligation are based in part on current market
conditions. Additional information is disclosed in
note 17(f).

Estimate of fair value of loans to farmers

The fair value of loans is dependent on the
market interest rate. In the absence of a similar
financial market for loans to farmers, the
Organization considers information from interest
rates on commercial loans to
companies/personal loans, as adjusted to suit
the Organization's situation.

Estimated impairment of VMO loans

The Organization makes provision for impairment
of VMO loans based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the VMO loans. Provisions are
applied to VMO loans where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of VMO loans requires the use of

judgement and estimates. Where the
expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the

carrying value of VMO loans and impairment of
VMO loans is recognised in the year in which
such estimates have been changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Leasehold land

The Organization's interests in leasehold land

represent prepaid operating lease payments
and their net book values are analysed as

follows:

2008 2007
In Hong Kong held
on:-
Leases of 690,522 708,153
between 10 to 50
years

2008 2007
At 1 April 708,153 725,783
Amortisation of (17,631) (17,630)
prepaid operating
lease payments
At 31 March 690,522 708,153
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E<E 4 i@ggul%'ﬁﬁj Property, plant and equipment

ST

B

Agricultural
Development
[ R A Fund
Markets and depots (Note 8)
ES S By ES S
wWE  EEEN IR Hp fist HEERE IR fiat
Furniture, ' Furnitlre, '
fixtures fixtures
and Machinery Leasehold and
computer Motor and improve-  computer Grand
Buildings equipment  vehicles others Total ments equipment Total Total
B FFA FPE- | At 1 April 2006
754 Cost 2,953,430 18,058,937 5,879,477 127,109 27,018,953 - 718,580 718,580 27,737,533
A= Accumulated depreciation (2,953,430)  (11,112,219)  (4,408,843) (103,493)  (18,577,985) - (231,253) (231,253)  (18,809,238)
ERENA Net book amount - 6,946,718 1,470,634 23,616 8,440,968 - 487,327 487,327 8,928,295
BEIFFEEFDEHSA-PIRER Year ended 31 March 2007
HAFRREnA i Opening net book amount - 6,946,718 1,470,634 23,616 8,440,968 - 487,327 487,327 8,928,295
iR Additions - 864,939 - 38,360 903,299 2,351,110 503,380 2,854,490 3,757,789
i (P 26(b)) Disposals (Note 26(b)) - (84,182) - (14,616) (98,798) - - - (98,798)
+ - Cost - (683,677) - (85,108) (768,785) - - - (768,785)
RASHTES - Accumulated depreciation - 599,495 - 70,492 669,987 - - - 669,987
Depreciation - (2,682,692) (393,583) (11,792) (3,088,067) (235,111) (121,296) (356,407) (3,444,474)
ARENA Closing net book amount - 5,044,783 1,077,051 35,568 6,157,402 2,115,999 869,411 2,985,410 9,142,812
BT RFEEZE=A - | At 31 March 2007
754 Cost 2,953,430 18,240,199 5,879,477 80,361 27,153,467 2,351,110 1,221,960 3,573,070 30,726,537
A= Accumulated depreciation (2,953,430)  (13,195416)  (4,802,426) (44,793)  (20,996,065) (235,111) (352,549) (587,660)  (21,583,725)
A=A Net book amount - 5,044,783 1,077,051 35,568 6,157,402 2,115,999 869,411 2,985,410 9,142,812
BE-HEEFZES{- FIFFR Year ended 31 March 2008
Opening net book amount - 5,044,783 1,077,051 35,568 6,157,402 2,115,999 869,411 2,985,410 9,142,812
Additions - 826,477 698,668 - 1,525,145 144,976 977,858 1,122,834 2,647,979
Disposals (Note 26(b)) - (83,352) - (4,880) (88,232) - - - (88,232)
- Cost - (585,695) (417,500) (24,480) (1,027,675) - - - (1,027,675)
- Accumulated depreciation - 502,343 417,500 19,600 939,443 - - - 939,443
Depreciation - (1,107,141) (533,317) (7,672) (1,648,130) (249,609) (215,913) (465,522) (2,113,652)
PR RE0A Closing net book amount - 4,680,767 1,242,402 23,016 5,946,185 2,011,366 1,631,356 3,642,722 9,588,907
WHZFFIEFZHZA D At 31 March 2008
w4 Cost 2,953,430 18,480,981 6,160,645 55,881 27,650,937 2,496,086 2,199,818 4,695,904 32,346,841
RAFHTES Accumulated depreciation (2,953,430)  (13,800,214)  (4,918,243) (32,865)  (21,704,752) (484,720) (568,462)  (1,053,182)  (22,757,934)
JEFnA i Net book amount - 4,680,767 1,242,402 23,016 5,946,185 2,011,366 1,631,356 3,642,722 9,588,907

PrER 1,648,130 7 1 465,5228 7 (T FEF 1 3,088,067H L 356, 407H ) 55 I A

BV AL 0 SR T R L S L SR RTA

Depreciation expenses of $1,648,130 and $465,522 (2007: $3,088,067 and $356,407) have been expensed in the statement of income and expenditure of VMO General Fund and VMO Agricultural Development Fund respectively.
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7 BEERYARFHKEE VMO Loan Fund
3

@

=

f % % Balance Sheet

TR A FERY RN AL TAZ (R RATAL G ACKEI)NT AL | RN
The VMO Loan Fund is represented by the following assets which have been included in the assets and
liabilities in the Organization's balance sheet on Appendix 5:

L 2008 2007
Note
¥A ASSETS
S oy é Current assets
FEERY AR A& VMO Loans
B ﬁ # Loans to farmers 1,428,040 2,115,540
=414 Accrued interest 56,690 60,477
1,484,730 2,176,017
BB EIE R % Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (620,281) (374,047)
864,449 1,801,970

oo T Efefdl
Less: Fair value adjustment and amortisation:

47 1p %% (133,613) (249,397)

Balance at 1 April

#a L AP ALY E 22 90,493 115,784

Interest income on amortisation of loans to farmers

37 3lp %%

Balance at 31 March (43,120) (133,613)
B %R 4% - % Loans to farmers - net 821,329 1,668,357
H @ e Other receivables 39,337 64,667
AZWEIW 2 A 1E P DI T E A 11 10,100,000 7,600,000
Bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and
within one year
R &2 M E&FE WS Cashand cash equivalents 12 313,985 1,687,949

10,413,985 9,287,949

B ¥ A Total assets 11,274,651 11,020,973
# £ FUNDS
* £ Capital 2,608,000 2,608,000
47 1p RG24 8,412,973 7,963,543
Accumulated surplus at 1 April
rEREFH 21 253,678 449,430
Net surplus for the year
32 31lprHE4e 8,666,651 8,412,973

Accumulated surplus at 31 March

B3 &£ Total funds 11,274,651 11,020,973
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7 EERFARFFZEE (¥) VMO Loan Fund (Continued)
(b) #F s ¥ A & VMO Loans

FEAY R FAAEZR: ) ARELREARELZATRLEAH

The VMO Loan Fund was set up for making loans to farmers for productive purposes.

*“: FEAEZD 24— P FERY R 61,3008 (= i‘é’? 22,109 )5 i e X ERE o

AIEHE S A ‘r«»y#& TR SO PR A Al ’ﬁ E R IE LR Y o B
a HpEds A FT e T o
to
a number of independent borrowers for whom there is no recent history of default. The Organization does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The ageing analysis of VMO Loans is as follows:

2008 2007
WHp e K4
Ageing of past due but not impaired
90p 2 2 F Up to 90 days 61,300 -
90 p 4+ Over 90 days - 2,109

61,300 2,109

%?;??,\_&_—:H_—:,L_E ,
#HE -

As at 31 March 2008, VMO Loans of $620,281 (2007: $374,047) were impaired against which full provision
had been made.

%*‘f

B

Feof #1620, 2818 ~ (= 2 F = & 1 374,047 ~ )2 SR EZ 2 Hiv

Refc AR B n FhheT
Movements on provision for impairment of loan receivables are as follows:

Fi L 2008 2007

Note
41 1p Atl April 374,047 349,989
et BE 4 Jork
Charged to the statement of income and expenditure:
-3g % - Additional provisions 22 246,234 24,058
%372 31p At31 March 620,281 374,047

N FRAER-DFR-EZ VLo p o FERYAREIUBEALE

The VMO Loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollar at 31 March 2008 and 2007.

EAFELEPH O BRERRERF R GRS P E RS T o

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the receivables mentioned above.
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8 FEFNE &L EHEB AL VMO Agricultural Development Fund

TR AFEAY AL EFEREL FA G fHERT AR AC
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VERF AR R

The VMO Agricultural Development Fund is represented by the following assets and liabilities which have

been included in the assets and liabilities in the Organization’s balance sheet on Appendix 5:

?‘é Non current assets
# % 2 2% % Property, plant and equipment

# F A& Current assets

? % Inventories

H ¥ Bz i Other receivables

ERUICH N - B xS ETE N

Bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and
within one year

R 4& %2 M £ F ¥4 Cashand cash equivalents

®F A Total assets

# & FUNDS

* £ Capital

4] EI At 1 April

P FE Sy - % & Transfer from VMO General Fund

%37 31p At31 March

47 1p % 5454 Accumulated deficit at 1 April

*~ & R 54 Net deficit for the year

3% 31p & %454 Accumulated deficit at 31 March
% H & Total funds

£ 7 LIABILITIES
m w# g & Current liabilities
H # J& 4 2 Other payables

B f § Total liabilities

B A &2 §F Total funds and liabilities

FERY P EREA L 2 I R BT LS
S BERE B PRI RE ’\—Lﬁ_/ya?

i3
Note

11

12

13

18

P REE R EE T
ﬁ‘f?"}r’gﬁ’jiﬁl’dé@"‘\‘i’l%i%q—‘-"

2008 2007
3,642,722 2,985,410
32,600 54,500
2,071,085 1,983,565
91,300,000 47,700,000
475,483 1,439,678
93,879,168 51,177,743
97,521,890 54,163,153
70,000,000 70,000,000
60,000,000 -
130,000,000 70,000,000
-17,320,953 -5,848,910
-15,784,783 -11,472,043
-33,105,736 -17,320,953
96,894,264 52,679,047
627,626 1,484,106
627,626 1,484,106
97,521,890 54,163,153
R R T TR S e

The VMO Agricultural Development Fund was set up for promoting local agriculture through financing or
subsidising various agricultural research and development projects, agricultural land rehabilitation

scheme, construction and improvement of communal agricultural facilities, vocational training for farmers
and agricultural workers, exhibitions and other publicity means to promote agriculture.
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9 4 Fé.:. LAY
Financial instruments by category
A I L F a0 T
The Organization’s financial instruments include the following:
LEE 2008 2007
Note
FTAE - BHE BRKA
Assets — loans and receivables
PR E Y B 3 VMO Loans 7 821,329 1,668,357
¥ % 2 # ©# JiJc ik Trade and other receivables 10 12,574,516 10,114,002
AZE3 B ¥ A 1E P FIHP 4T 5 3R 11 382,250,000 375,400,000
Bank deposits with maturities of more than
three months and within one year
R 4&Z R4 %G Cashand cash equivalents 12 13,390,291 9,404,517
409,036,136 396,586,876
2008 2007
FiE - He g i
Liabilities — other financial liabilities
¥ % 2 # # & 3 Trade and other payables 15 10,026,438 11,644,515
FFHF L £ Vegetable buyers’ deposits 5,167,548 4,927,147
15,193,986 16,571,662
10 ¥4 2 26 ek
Trade and other receivables
2008 2007
¥ % J&z3x Trade receivables 8,722,317 6,345,236
# %4 Deposits 19,800 18,905
H @ Jdc i Other receivables 3,832,399 3,749,861
12,574,516 10,114,002
3p 1 207 Prepayments 1,974,617 1,702,819
14,549,133 11,816,821
I RRAEEZZRRSEZV Lo p TR AU RS T BERG B RAPRE LB AL H o

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying value at 31 March 2008 and 2007

and are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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11

¥ 286 ik ()

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

R E AN £ -
AN ) M E

mEE LAVAR S L

As at 31 March 2008, trade receivables of $547,593 (2007: $754,008) were past due but not impaired.

These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The

Organization does not hold any collateral over these balances. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables

is as follows:

Z - P FER|TED47,593 8 (= FFE S & 1 754,008F )i e I m R E e
BTG % @mcfrm&v; Ao w MRE G E RS R 5§ Bl

AN \t

2008 2007
Ageing of Dast due but not impaired
30p 2 127 Upto 30 days 487,470 621,429
3132 60p 31to60days 44,426 52,707
613 90 E 61 to 90 days 14,653 39,612
90 p 12+ Over 90 days 1,044 40,260

547,593 754,008

FE2HEB RPN NEBEYRLG e 7F 2 RENTA o
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

EARE P BRE R R ERE bR OREILY R GRS T E o
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivables
mentioned above.

ST AN AEIR Y A 1Ep D
Bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and within one year

e 2008 2007
Note
FEE Y e B4 £ VMO General Fund 280,850,000 320,100,000
FaE okt -0y ﬁ‘zﬁl}é VMO Loan Fund 7 10,100,000 7,600,000
R LY R £ B A& £ VMO Agricultural Development Fund 8 91,300,000 47,700,000
382,250,000 375,400,000

WoFFAEZZFF-S&FZ 02— p o NAIEIB Y @ LE P DI T AT B R 3R

(Z33-# 13998 pEGFHNIHIHP 5 100% (ZFF-#:1103% )2 wp~ZH i

The effective interest rate on bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and within one year is
3.00% (2007: 3.99%); these deposits have an average maturity of 100 days (2007: 103 days) and are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar at 31 March 2008 and 2007.
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12 423 4% @ $ Cashand cash equivalents
Vi 2008 2007
Note
FE LY - 4 A £ VMO General Fund
4172 3 & Cash at bank and in hand 12,600,823 3,476,890
3 2 & 3 421733 2 Bank deposits with maturities of - 2,800,000
three months or less
12,600,823 6,276,890
FERY AP A 4 VMO Loan Fund
#{73. £ Cash at bank 113,985 187,949
3 2 & D)) 421733 2 Bank deposits with maturities of 200,000 1,500,000
three months or less
7 313,985 1,687,949
FE R R ¥4 B & £ VMO Aaricultural Development Fund
% & I&f Cash at bank and in hand 75,483 139,678
3 1 & TP en42 (7 5 2 Bank deposits with maturities of 400,000 1,300,000
of three months or less
8 475,483 1,439,678
% 21 Total 13,390,291 9,404,517
% B R %o B b 'R -KIE Maximum exposure to credit risk 11,960,700 7,926,053

13

SRl ?? #E2-FF-&E=Z"=L-p s Ri Jﬁﬂﬂ*“?)»[% g "JF\ P gF AT EIF s 1L22R
SRR #E13.86m); »HEFHZDTHINGP L TA(ZFF-EFE IR )ENEALHEE

The effectlve interest rate on bank deposits with maturities of three months or less is 1.22% (2007: 3.86%);

these deposits have an average maturity of 7 days (2007: 11 days) and are denominated in Hong Kong

at 31 March 2008 and 2007.

- 4 & & - /83 F4 General fund - accumulated surplus

LT 2008 2007

Note
47" 1 p %% Balance at 1 April 318,713,198 291,633,539
BrgFfE oy b EfFEAL 8 -60,000,000 -
Transfer to VMO Agncultural Development Fund
det BE AN AERE A 31,202,620 27,079,659

Net surplus for the year transferred from
statement of income and expenditure

37 31 p %% Balance at 31 March 289,915,818 318,713,198
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kAter £ iFF 2L 4 Funds provided from external sources for capital expenditure

200647 1p ~2007#37%31p ~2007#4" 1p %2008%3" 31p %7 :

Balance at 1 April 2006, 31 March 2007, 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2008

Colonial Development Welfare Fund Grants
33ID994 - B At E b
Scheme D994-Village agricultural depots
3-#ID1066 - BEF 2 im
Scheme D1066-Purchase of lorries
3+41D5250 - EEL VB FEE &
Scheme D5250-Cheung Sha Wan Vegetable Market

7% 2 2 # B3k Trade and other payables

¥ % & 3% Trade payables
# £ Deposits
H i J& i 2 Other payables

B 1 & B¥#4 Provision for unused annual leave

2008

6,459,012
403,890

3,163,536

10,026,438
1,050,845

11,077,283

144,000

150,000

1,470,104

1,764,104

2007

6,067,191
615,096

4,962,228

11,644,515

1,022,666

12,667,181

WOFREANEEZZFR-FZ VLo peanp R 2 B BHROS T BERG B RAPRE LE RS

H i~ o

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying value at 31 March 2008 and 2007

and are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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16 L HMRIx&HF4H Provision for long service payment
e 2008 2007
Note
47 1 p %7 Balance at 1 April 6,898,142 6,650,513
£ & & 4 Payment for the year -621,408 -514,722
6,276,734 6,135,791
# R ¥% # 4 Additional provision for the year 20(a) 1,351,701 762,351
3 * 31 %% Balance at 31 March 7,628,435 6,898,142
palbns i :K % Less: Current portion -123,806 -589,532
2L #s ¥4 Non-current portion 7,504,629 6,308,610
MZFEFANEEZ R RS2V PR B AR O T EERG B R o
The fair value of provision for long service payment approximates its carrying value at
31 March 2008 and 2007.
17 ¥ #agfls-glehE & Assets under defined benefit plan
e 2008 2007
Note
FTALGEDT A
Balance sheet assets for:
- % 248413+ 3] Defined benefit plan (@) -2,188,000 -285,000
et BE LA F
Statement of income and expenditure credit for:
- & 245113+ %] Defined benefit plan (b) -1,903,000 -1,054,000

%@mfkmﬁﬁi{fﬁ$&uﬁpwfiﬁ1&i°“L?;M FABZ W AT A d 2o
A s o Aihi B34 F &L & 7 féﬁ— PR R B o T TR AR EY
FHR(AE)F RN FRFAE= 2 - TR EM R

The Organization's defined benefit plan is a final salary defined benefit plan. The assets of the funded
plan

are held independently of the Organization's assets in separate trustee administered funds. The
Organization's major plan is valued by a qualified actuary annually using the project unit cost method. The
Organization's major plan is valued by a qualified actuary annually using the project unit cost method. The
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17 245l T A () Assets under defined benefit plan (Continued)
@ ¢ WF AL R AmRPETRT IS SR
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:
WL 2008 2007
Note
SRR E ERE (d) 25,997,000 21,180,000
Present value of funded obligations
FHRF AT G (©) -38,567,000 -34,102,000
Fair value of plan assets
-12,570,000 -12,922,000
AL B2 F 10,382,000 12,637,000
Unrecognised actuarial gain
ARG -2,188,000 -285,000
Asset in the balance sheet
(b) & ot B E £ ¢ B L
The amounts recognised in the statement of income and expenditure are as follows:
e 2008 2007
Note
JR.F JRI:= & Current service cost 855,000 899,000
14 = ~ Interest cost 862,000 935,000
PFHFAOET v -2,356,000 -1,964,000
Expected return on plan assets
AERFERAEIEEE -839,000 -505,000
Net actuarial gain recognised during the year
B A l,lrt TR 6,000 16,000
Administrative cost deducted from contributions
Ve B oA (431,000) -435,000
Employees' contributions received
Bl ¢ AFEZ A uARTIR 20(a) -1,903,000 -1,054,000
Total, included in employee benefit expenditure
FRFTAZFEYARED, 342,000 (= FF - & 15,721,000 ~) ©
The actual return on plan assets was $5,342,000 (2007: $5,721,000).
(© #HFAMDL E i P R hideT
The movement in the fair value of plan assets for the year is as follows:
2008 2007
49 1p At April 34,102,000 27,747,000
4| F A «n3g ¥ v 3F Expected return on plan assets 2,356,000 1,964,000
37072 ¢ Net contributions 425,000 1,396,000
¢ i} 454 Benefits paid -1,302,000 -762,000
3417 A4 ¥ 4< £ Actuarial gain on plan assets 2,986,000 3,757,000
*+3% 31p At31 March 38,567,000 34,102,000
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245 fl3- 3 T A () Assets under defined benefit plan (Continued)

(d)

(€)

(f)

EF AL G AR BEFDRET ERERH AT |

The movement in the present value of funded obligations recognised

in the balance sheet is as follows:

47 1p At 1 April

414 & % Interest cost

I PRIE= A& Current service cost
¢ 4 454 Benefits paid

B =54 /(e £ ) Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience

A8 R BB/ (e ¥ )
Actuarial loss/(gain) due to assumption changes

3% 31p At31 March

WFAR G AN RR(FA) f AR T

Movement in the net (asset)/liability recognised in the balance sheet is as follows:

it
Note
%47 19 At1April

Income recognised in statement of income and expenditure
SRR VEAT e

Employer's contributions paid to the plan

%37 31p At31 March

WL B Y B AT

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows :
¥+ 3 Discount rate

FRFT A v

Expected rate of return on plan assets

Ak FP2GFH AL F

Expected rate of future salary increases

Tyaipgp e T L iFE (F)

Average expected remaining working lives (years)

i 4
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2008 2007
21,180,000 21,163,000
862,000 935,000
855,000 899,000
-1,302,000 -762,000
231,000 -899,000
4,171,000 -156,000
25,997,000 21,180,000
2008 2007
-285,000 1,746,000
-1,903,000 -1,054,000
- -977,000
-1,903,000 -2,031,000
-2,188,000 -285,000
2008 2007
% %
2.585 4.2
7.0 7.0
4.0 3.1
10 11
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FEENRY AR EFE A £ 54H Net deficit from VMO Agricultural Development Fund

ML 2008 2007
Note
v]’z » Income
A EHP L E 3,387,544 2,353,840
Interest income on bank deposits
AR R EenLE EE ERF (R 1,237,800 872,400
FarmFest income (Note)
H 94z ¥ Other income 3,263 350
4,628,607 3,226,590
&£ 4 Expenditure
E ¥ 44 #:+3] Land rehabilitation scheme
- %% % 1232 - Repairs and maintenance (68,912) (56,512)
- se1 &£ 4 - Miscellaneous expenditure (722) (560)
- 37 # - Depreciation (115,360) (96,207)
FRE LA PERGOF (113,643) (907,645)
Construction and |mpr0vement of
communal agricultural facilities
R T E B (3,684,370) (2,228,654)
Crop Development Programmes Promotion
FRERITEZIEFLA (2,176,901) (1,022,598)
Controlled - Environment Greenhouse Production
TR IBEE (7,735,917) (4,301,921)
Promotion of Organic Farming
AP B HPREE (3,408,384) (3,004,370)
Voluntary Registration Scheme of Local Vegetable Farms
AP R A SR (43,809) (48,112)
Promotion of Local Agricultural and Fisheries Products
L R RAE D RS
Improvement to VMO'S wholesale marketing facilities and services
- #7 ¥, - Depreciation (350,162) (260,200)
-# 1 % * - Other expenses (266,326) (301,326)
rE g B E et & &L FarmFest (2,448,034) (2,462,995)
2% %+ 4 Pun Choi Mega Feast - (6,000)
H s Others (850) (1,533)

(20,413,390)

(14,698,633)

*E R ZES54  Net deficit for the year 8 (15,784,783)

(11,472,043)

Hir o B¢ e g sy e 500, 0008 (= F F - & 500,000 &) e

Note: Donation of $500,000 (2007: $500,000) from Fish Marketing Organization is included in this

income.
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BFHFFH LZE Netincome on sale of premium vegetables

RGBT e L T

The income and expenditure on the sale of premium vegetables for the year are as follows:

¢ > Income

B ¥ 48 Sale of premium vegetables
# & 373 Sales discount

4§ % & (% 3x): Cost of inventories sold (note):

# 4= 3% § Opening inventories
M- Purchases
# % % b Closing inventories

# 8 < 4] Gross profit

ER Y 24 Direct operating expenses
4 i w i Rebates
4 p in £ Sale commission

# 1. Note:

Yitdk 4

Appendix 9
2008 2007

39,123,637 28,259,911
(156,369) (131,022)
38,967,268 28,128,889
109,153 61,455
29,147,567 21,024,893
(142,866) (109,153)
29,113,854 20,977,195
9,853,414 7,151,694
(253,122) (43,480)
(28,449) (18,092)
(281,571) (61,572)
9,571,843 7,090,122

G areden a4 il,990,614 ~(= 2%~ & 11,256,863k ~) -

The cost of inventories sold includes inventory write-off of $1,990,614 (2007: $1,256,863).
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20 #F2+2 2 #4591 Employee benefit expenditure
(@) AFEFAY e BAEPN PFEZ B L AGI A 4740 ¢
Employee benef|t expenditure in the VMO General Fund is analysed as below:
L 2008 2007
Note
;Z?r 2 Salaries and wages 33,679,647 31,601,825
1 # ¥ Staff bonuses 168,221 129,559
% F* 2 2 RER /(YY) 28,179 -51,648
Provision for/(write-back on provision) unused annual leave
< #pPR7+ £ & 3% Provision for long service payment 16 1,351,701 762,351
¥ k451 = ~ Retirement benefit costs
SR R EEAIZ A O M 419 R 1,498,573 1,365,273
defined contribution plan and MPF Scheme
- & 245413+ 4] defined benefit plan 17(b) -1,903,000 -1,054,000

34,823,321 32,753,360

(b) ",ftd ek TrEAEL 2 4] 58,569,518k (= FF - & 15,038, 719k 7)o & 453318
FERY P EFEA LA PP oo
In addmon to the above, employee benefit expenditure amounting to $8,569,518
(2007: $5,038,719) as listed below has been included in certain expenditure items in the VMO
Agricultural Development Fund in note 18.

2008 2007
# Salaries and wages 8,169,026 4,822,639
Wikdg = & - BFIE A £13 k33 400,492 216,080
Retirement benefit costs — MPF scheme

8,569,518 5,038,719

21 &~ L4232 FFHEF T Rent, rates and permit fees

B HEHe g YA TEL S 630,500~ FF - £ 630,500 ) e ipm L AP o
Included in the amount, $630,500 (2007: $630,500) represents operating lease rentals for market
premises.
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24

FEERY AR KL £:2F4 Netsurplus from VMO Loan Fund

% Income

B 2 B 241 4 Interest on loans to farmers

sl B A B L £ o

Interest income on amortisation of loans to farmers
4117 % %11 4 Interest on bank deposits

& 41 Expenditure
K&‘ii#ﬁiﬁ‘ R _
Provision for impairment of receivables

* & B % P4 Netsurplus for the year

7 Taxation

o PR R B BB L12F AR5 6] $8THE » ALy BB B L B fIE - FIM X & TR RER o
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Organization is exempted under Section 87

Yitdk 4
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2008 2007
34,687 40,161
90,493 115,784
374,732 317,543
499,912 473,488
(246,234) (24,058)
253,678 449,430

of the Inland Revenue Ordinance, Cap 112 from any tax chargeable under the Ordinance.

# &3 ¥ E ¥ Promotion of Organic Farming

BRFWRF R LG PEFDE(BL)/ B4 10

4 L Ao

AL AMLIShA MR Y o AERM B

Promotion of Organic Farming includes the following net (deficit)/surplus on sale of organic
vegetables which has been included in certain expenditure items in note 18. The income and
expenditure on the sale of organic vegetables for the year are as follows:

=% Income
3 W T % 48 Sales of organic vegetables
& p = & Cost of inventories sold:

B Purchases

& b < 4] Gross profit

E#EF L Direct operating expenses
#Fi2 2 2454 Employee benefit expenditure
4 p i £ Sales commission

@i § Transportation charges

* B 2 % % Stores and equipment
H @ & 4 Other expenditure

* & B Z(E54) F 4 Net (deficit)/surplus for the year

2008 2007
2,646,230 2,488,943
-809,233 -752,319
1,836,997 1,736,624
-979,384 -802,451
-669,219 -682,801
-121,314 -16,485
-183,255 -168,780
-43,327 -52,333
-1,996,499 -1,722,850
-159,502 13,774
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R it % B3 4] Crop Development Programmes Promotion

R TP F R LML IS CELSFENEEH)/FR T SR AL MR Y c AERME

-y NN .
P B ek o

Crop Development Programmes Promotion includes the following net (deficit)/surplus on sale of
accredited local vegetables which has been included in certain expenditure items in note 18.
The income and expenditure on the sale of accredited vegetables for the year are as follows:

=% Income

3 2R FE R4 Sales of accredited local vegetables
&l § = ~ Cost of inventories sold:

pE b Purchases

& b < 41 Gross profit

E & ¥ # & 4 Direct operating expenses
#2 2 #4571 Employee benefit expenditure
4 p i £ Sales commission

@ § Transportation charges

* B 2 % % Stores and equipment

T4~ 2 ¥ B % Publication and publicity

H 1 & ) Other expenditure

*# R E(gF4E) / 24 Net (deficit)/surplus for the year

e 4
Appendix 9

2008 2007
752,782 350,386
-244,372 -68,933
508,410 281,453
-377,000 -66,047
-196,532 -59,371
-29,683 -3,588
-26,299 -40,770
-146,450 -
-6,758 -130
-782,722 -169,906
-274,312 111,547
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26 & nE % Cash flow statement

(@)

(b)

FEZE (0% )/ A2 R &
Cash (used in)/generated from operations

* £ B % ¥4 Total surplus for the vear

# &3E p ;. Adjustment for;
- E ¥ PR7> £ # % Provision for long service payment
- R ET AT R
Provision for obligations under defined benefit plan written back
- 81173 241 .4 Jx ~  Interest income on bank deposits
- B A4 42~ Interest income on loans to farmers
- 37 ¥ % #c4' Depreciation and amortisation
S R W AR
Provision for impairment of receivables
SHFE PR RA SN B (LT )
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment (see below)
o %2 SN s U R C S
Interest income on amortisation of loans to farmers

BiEF £ %% : Changes in working capital:

- % & Inventories

- £ PR+ £ # % Provision for long service payment
- B AY AR % VMO Loans

- ¥ 4% %2 2 Rz Trade and other receivables
-¥ 3% 2 24 it Trade and other payables

- FFIE L &£ Vegetable buyers' deposits

FEEP (T )/ AL R4
Cash (used in)/generated from operations

BIREMELPN NEFECPEE XA STERA P

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

it

Note

PR % 7% & Net book amount

PR WER KR DD LS

Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment
MBI E B ER XG TE A

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment

i 4
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2008 2007
15,671,515 16,057,046
1,351,701 762,351
-1,903,000 -2,031,000
-15,571,320 -15,546,529
-34,687 -40,161
2,131,283 3,462,104
246,234 24,058
55,332 95,158
-90,493 -115,784
1,856,565 2,667,243
211 -8,499
-621,408 -514,722
687,500 1,537,300
-2,359,664 -1,938,859
-1,589,898 2,228,527
240,401 -238,815
-1,786,293 3,732,175

2008 2007
88,232 98,798
-55,332 -95,158
32,900 3,640
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28

¥ & Capital commitments

AESYZ RRAEZD 2L P AR P ABEL S E B EE KG T ARELT

At 31 March 2008, the Organization had outstanding capital commitments in respect of property,

plant and equipment and not provided for in the financial statements as follows:

2008

FERY P EFEAL
VMO Agricultural Development Fund
¢ % & %@ A% Contracted but not provided for 3,342,750

GE= g
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2007

525,000

k ¥% % % Related-party transactions

A& EEA R4 Key management compensation
2008

#F2z2H el kR 4sT 408,279
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

2007

411,739
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BB INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
REASBEALR A TO THE TRUSTEE OF THE AGRICULTURAL
(,g j; & j) R ! K #¥) (established under the Agricultural Products

(Marketing) Ordinance, Chapter 277)

We have audited the financial statements of the
Agricultural Products Scholarship Fund (the
“Fund”) set out on Appendices 11 to 15, which
BIup o &Rt BE 4 s comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2008,
MESEA AR g ﬁ\#ﬁ‘_ﬁ and the statement of income and expenditure,

‘ * statement of changes in funds and cash flow
LR statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

LS &S I L ;t SRy
BEAE(TAE  )erpdasdrd o
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’**ﬁkfbﬁﬁéri,ﬁ’k#ﬁ iy & Trustee’s responsibility for the financial
statements

ABE % 277 % (R A &(5g)iE b)) 22 The Agricultural Products (Marketing) Ordinance,

AKX FEEOBED o 534 F13454 Chapter 277, requires the Trustee to keep proper

i® é FER D AR e B AR A R S 2 accounts. The Trustee is responsible for the

SIS ke & e ikt B ance wih Hong

WoEE AL PR 2L IR M AR 4 #9 B Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by

SN FREH] o i M AR %‘ F o Bd THEEE e Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Ha FRNE L HEME Héﬁ?“""% i ;@ % Accountants. This responsibility includes

€ IR 2 FHFRT IFD £ g€ 3 designing, implementing and maintaining internal

B control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Pl eng iz Auditor’s responsibility

AP T O T A R A 'riﬂfgf P E M iz- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
FAEND L FRBES F I ORMEH A these financial statements based on our audit
B e A AR A ’f P2t AAR A u g H o p and to report quropinion solely to you in
e T & g’T} A2 hp F e TR accordance with our agreed terms of
L1 AR ER G E engagement and for_n_o_ other purpose. We do
¥ not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.
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Appendix 10

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE TRUSTEE OF THE AGRICULTURAL
PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND
(Continued)

(established under the Agricultural Products
(Marketing) Ordinance, Chapter 277)

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Trustee, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Fund as at 31 March 2008 and of its surplus and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

(Signed)PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 August 2008
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(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

FALGZ
BALANCE SHEET

FA ASSETS
i F A& Non-Current assets
# 3 718 p i T Held-to-maturity investments

i 4 B4 Interest-free loans

w# F A& Current assets

w4 B 4% Interest-free loans
f&qz 1 4 Interest receivable
AWE 3B A 1 &P DT E
Bank deposits with maturities of more
than three months and within one year
&% M £ %W 4 Cashand cash equivalents

% ¥ & Total assets

# & FUNDS

P BT S W % 1

Capital allocated by the Vegetable Marketing
Organization

B ¢ 24 Accumulated surplus

% X £ Total funds

E % LIABILITIES

e g Current liabilities
& 1 378 Accruals

M ¢ 7 Total liabilities

WA £2 7§ Total funds and liabilities

iz 2= 4 (Signed)Trustee

3 v ¥ Miss CHEUNG Siu-hing

AR FRAEAT LD

Hong Kong, 19 August 2008

e 15 IR A AP ARIR A A RN A o

The notes on Appendix 15 is an integral part of these financial statements.

iz

Note

10

10

lﬁ&; -
Appendix 11

WwEz1z=L-p
As at 31 March

2008 2007
5,963,026 -
156,921 203,836
6,119,947 203,836
79,961 80,522
133,366 52,201
2,100,000 1,200,000
77,623 6,831,627
2,390,950 8,164,350
8,510,897 8,368,186
8,000,000 8,000,000
488,496 367,186
8,488,496 8,367,186
22,401 1,000
22,401 1,000
8,510,897 8,368,186
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(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

LS
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

i » Income

HFIIY P T LA

Interest income on held-to-maturity investments
#2175 291 4 4z ~ Interest income on bank deposits
gral L PP AR A e

Interest income on amortisation of interest-free loans
2R+ & £ Refund of grants

H# 4z »  Sundry income

£ 4 Expenditure

¥ #c g7 ¥ £ Auditors' remuneration

# & £ Scholarships

e+ & £ Grants

33 p ik F sl

Amortisation of held-to-maturity investments
#{7 7 * Bank Charges

X & B F4/(854) Surplus/(deficit) for the year

e 15 S s & P ARAR A SPACRLEA o

The notes on Appendix 15 is an integral part of these financial statements.

it

Note

Mt dk - =
Appendix 12

Az L plaER
Year ended 31 March
2008 2007
228,331 -
116,742 339,146
31,619 38,317
- 12,000
1,250 -
377,942 389,463
(21,000) (1,000)
(208,000) (515,500)
(12,000) (17,000)
(12,441) -
(3,191) -
(256,632) (533,500)
121,310 (144,037)
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Appendix 13

FAEREAL
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND
(% g I by r:'L'r’ﬁ é;_g;?'? %;u)
(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

ML 2008 2007

Note
4% 1p %% Balance at 1 April 8,367,186 8,511,223
& R FA/(h54) Surplus/(deficit) for the year 10 121,310 -144,037
3% 31p %7 Balance at 31 March 8,488,496 8,367,186

ek 1D LG APAARAR A RIS o
The notes on Appendix 15 is an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

RENEE
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

L

Note

FEEFDRENE
Cash flows from operating activities

¥ @41 * 3R £ Cash used in operations 11

FFES R &g Cash flows from investing activities
@ 4z 414 Interest received

A2 3B Y oA lEPN DI AT 3 AR (T R) BB A

Net (placement)/withdrawal of bank deposits with
maturities of more than three months and within one year
BEAEFI R R T

Purchases of held-to-maturity investments

PR FECTH )/ AL DERE
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

REZRELZFFEGD)/ H4

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
EAREZREFTR S

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

ERREIBEZRF
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 9

s 15 GG AR ARIR & ORI o

i &.L r
Appendix 14

Az L-plreER
Year ended 31 March

2008 2007
(142,445) (407,574)
263,908 366,115
(900,000) 6,700,000
(5,975,467) -
(6,611,559) 7,066,115
(6,754,004) 6,658,541
6,831,627 173,086
77,623 6,831,627

The notes on Appendix 15 is an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

P I54F & i
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 - BEH
General information

BASASAE (TRAL ) PHBELERBALZENS 277 F ( LAS (8% ) E6] ) % 9E(L) %
LA B o A A S p

The financial statements of the Agricultural Products Scholarship Fund (the "Fund") are prepared in
accordance with Section 9E(1) of the Agricultural Products (Marketing) Ordinance, Cap. 277. The Fund was
established for the following objects:

@);ﬁ TRV AEBAT L EL PARMH L EIA N B R Rt AL A R LB L T2
i? —r)\ B
The provision of scholarships, grants and loans for the education and training of persons who
are employed in agriculture and agricultural product marketing industries in Hong Kong and their families and
dependants; and

(b) i&TIr v R4 BRI LEZ LARH LTt a REFEF & T sz i
The provision of scholarships, grants and loans for the education and training of persons who wish to enter the
agriculture and agricultural product marketing industries in Hong Kong.

AR EB R AL L RS LTSI B EE S E Y B
The address of the Fund is 757 Lai Chi Kok Road, Cheung Sha Wan Wholesale Vegetable Market,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon.

PAFREE £ e & 3 0 3B ii*if'lfﬂ?(’% LY FEP ) o AT A S G B A A FFAEAND L4 pRETF o
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated.These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Trustee on 19 August 2008.

2 TR EHARER
Summary of significant accounting policies

B AATEFE A 0 B g?ﬁ%ﬁi“*v?‘f < o ‘f T3P RO TR R B R *,;4’:(

f)f‘i&qc- °

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

21 %ilAE

Basis of preparation

AA LA R ARG B L BRI (T AEMABER | )E S RBEL > A ST
The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and under the historical cost convention.
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CF ¥ 3P

b ”'“r’ﬁ f_%ﬁ,}/ﬁ‘;‘*)

(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

2 EREFHREL H)
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

(@)

(b)

B AR (3

Basis of preparation (Continued)

AR LA BMBER A BRELZRER Y FIMEET RN 2T TR I A AR AL
SRR E R AR T EEEE P R AR e

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain

critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Fund’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

W RFSE- V- PAE G MAREPITERZ g
New standard and amendment to published standard which are relevant to the Fund and effective
from 1 January 2007

AEC bMBRLIFEPH IR LT HERLEN R -F0 ) - pRANBZ EFUFRY hE B

PABERT T E@1E HGE, » 2 4B €] THBF A DT -FT ARG, i L3357 o FEMBER
Talr G AT BT N FFH AR EDOTH - L ERE RPEFEF M ERL E ST Hh DT E T E
HFR BT MEER G BT ARGE D AR RRMHE > S 4 Hh G RE AT o §ik g8
RN sl @B BT A vk T 2 B0L o ARG BMARRITE 48 6 FRI1DBT o GRS F S i
eng Pl £

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, and the complementary amendment to HKAS 1
“Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures” are mandatory for the Fund's accounting period
commencing on 1 April 2007 which the Fund has adopted in these financial statements. HKFRS 7
introduces new disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments. It requires the disclosure
of qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including
specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including sensitivity analysis to
market risk. The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces disclosures about the level of an entity’s capital and how
it manages capital. The adoption of HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 does not result in any
significant change to the Fund’s accounting policies other than certain additional disclosures.

mARAPE L ET RFwRPER 2372 2R
Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective

ABEFFoOE e oF G- BB B2 R T8, ) AEEN - FFAERC- F

BAAR ) - P B2 W EY AL MBI AR R RVEY MEHALEF M GER
P AR AL ERL LARSERELBITHAREAYEL M PR TP LG4RS
Ba Rt A HRL RPN HAR LML EABE

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards (collectively, the
“Amendments”) have been published that are mandatory for the Fund’s accounting period commencing from
1 April 2008 or 2009. Some of the Amendments are relevant and applicable to the Fund; however, they
have not been early adopted in these financial statements. The Fund has commenced, but not yet
completed, an assessment of the impact of the applicable Amendments on its results of operations and
financial position. The Trustee is of the view that the impact on the financial statements will not be significant
other than certain additional disclosures.
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2 EREFHREL H)
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 th ¥
Foreign currency translation

(@) # i fe7|p& b % Functional and presentation currency

AR BT ATII PIENA L FE A R EARBE DR BT E(TH R PR, ) o M
FEAVLEF R EWEAREDHNZ TR R o

Items included in the financial statements of the Fund are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Fund operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is both the Fund'’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) %2 % z 24 Transactions and balances

GHL B P RS T ISR R BE N ERI AL RA AU BRI G R T A
NESEFIEE R PR S A L Y A e

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange

rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of income and expenditure.

ﬂﬁi

23 LARHK
Interest-free loans

F_‘-

o E"# AP ATATR MK R AFRED S IFER I AMADT A c L E R R
PLnE F AN LIRS BEPASNI2E F o RIAHIERTA

Interest free loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market. They are included in non-current assets, except for those with maturities
less than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as current assets.

iig#ﬁrﬁw»i%ﬁm’ﬁaﬁ ¥
BIHREP AR EREZRLLEHR T FR
agﬁﬁ,%i*%mmedﬁxmemg%

1A ﬁ'#@iﬁ‘?\'ﬂ\a‘rlfﬁgméﬁiﬁ‘)J—ﬂ $ER
¥ AT AP "Fi*ﬁ*z%:ﬁ&ww%vﬁ BHEWLTAKE
IR E

AL BE e

5%‘%&%% GLEA

B2
=
T

Interest-free loans are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of interest-
free loans is established when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of loans. The amount of the provision for impairment is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure.
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2 EREFHREL H)
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

24 MIFFA
Financial assets

AREBAABT AL LTS BHRE BRAEFI Y P T o AR Mk
FAZ P iho F IR b 4ol AT A A 47 o
The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and

held-to-maturity investments. The classification depends on the purposes for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) 4% 2 /¥ p o4 F Held-to-maturity investments

FIFDPAPT T ALSTRLASTNZ AZIP P G2 BT A - REAFPELY
ARAFFINDP cFIHDPARTHAANHTAPN o LIPS BH A TI2R K MIANS
B F A

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments and fixed maturities that the Trustee has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are included in non-current assets, except for those with maturities less than 12
months after the balance sheet date; these are classified as current assets.

EE Jﬁﬂﬂmixp%” aT gt b oA AL B ?‘f’“f'l.i«zﬁ#?—ﬁﬂd"“if“f/ﬁ‘"m/&‘ia‘ﬁ
VR R G R RERS P“ﬁ FaH\p 1R ARG MICTIES NS & TR T U B - A
5T AKG 13%5’#%"? FHFRRAOGFARREDESRED F DL - BH S et pH AR

Held-to-maturity investments are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of the investments is established when there is objective evidence that the
investment issuers have a financial difficulty in paying the contractual amounts. The amount of the provision
for impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the
statement of income and expenditure.

(b) B 42 & fx#c5% Loans and receivables

g%a@kﬁgﬁﬂag B ] BIRED SR sir M T A - R0 2

Bin paw’ﬂ”ﬂﬂﬂd%EH&*&&M@"ﬁvmﬁﬁéﬂm FA PH:BREILTALG A
P\um\f PRLRH, > ThRIfIL ) » TRE B A1EPFPPRFTH, 2 THREIRESH
Py oo

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are mainly classified as “interest-free loans”, “interest receivable”, “bank deposits with maturities
of more than three months and within one year” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the balance sheet.

AR LS BRI PR LT PAERED FIMATAS FeMBTAL: R .
The Fund assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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2 EREFHREL H)
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

REZREERF
Cash and cash equivalents

REZRELZGF e HEAFETE RIDP 52 B 7 & 00T {7 540 -
Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances and bank deposits with original maturities of
three months or less.

o & FER
Revenue recognition

AEFHDP L EERBTENLERFE B P& o
Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

FERY AN LALE
Capital allocated by the Vegetable Marketing Organization

AREREH AL GE A MRAREC TR THEF R RN 2 AR, M (TR AL

The funding is recognised in the statement of income and expenditure as income and then
transferred to the“capital allocated by the Vegetable Marketing Organization”, which is used to support the
operation of the Fund.

3 PAFER "G E IR
Financial risk management

3.1

(@)

i%h & Tl &

Financial risk factors

%%fﬁ%#ki”*ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&%'4%&%‘&%&%‘ﬁﬁ?£& ST EERAEGE

FISF R %G o AR £ PR & F IR B AR Bl iR B E R g—iﬂ/}é& AR & AR AL
7 1B

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks factors: foreign exchange risk,

credit risk, liquidity risk and fair value and cash flow interest risk. The Fund’s overall risk management
procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Fund’s financial performance.

R s

Foreign exchange risk

é;\i—fé#’i; E Q‘.Fl'ﬁ‘)ﬁ’f\:‘ . 'F'mv—' m}]
rAELERBFE BEARIFARAELE IR
'f’i*‘n\ ﬁ °

Foreign exchange risk arises where future commercial transactions and recognised assets and

liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Fund’s functional currency. The Fund operates in
Hong Kong. In the opinion of the Trustee, the Fund has minimal exposure to the foreign exchange risk as
the transactions are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and no sensitivity analysis is performed
accordingly.

y L

Abenr i fH o A RRGTEAL o
=3 R

(IS
LR A A e KL MP R G2 AR TR

*A

-l
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3

PRk e E = (H)
Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

(b)

(c

~—

AR & F1E (F)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

TER%&
Credit risk

AAEFHAFAZERG R R c AR ETE PRI B Rp A LRFHREZFINND P KT -
The Fund has policies in place for the control and monitoring of its credit risk. The credit risk of
the Fund is primarily attributable to the interest-free loans and held-to-maturity investments.

’}‘irﬁgé’u\.? )\mf,l?j’i( JE ﬁﬁg$€§+'ﬁvﬂ"q—r)\&mj—r)\%ﬁ.‘l?upl"°§+4;’;\T:
AL LG REL BRMPOTR - nﬁ;tta ok ﬂ\éfﬁﬁf?ﬂﬂk{ghu,mxk’,ﬁr% P

AR S

i

MR ARESLERR S

In respect of the interest-free loans receivables, individual evaluations are performed on all

borrowers. For each loan granting, the Fund has policy to assess the eligibility of the granting. Besides, the
Fund will make specific provision for those balances which cannot be recovered. In the opinion of the
Trustee, the credit risk is considered to be low.

KRBT £ 4R IS0 BTG RS A G  FIL L RN G e
FPELBERENPREFEFEFER o

The credit risk on liquid funds and held-to-maturity investments are limited because the

counterparties are banks and bonds issuers with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

CRELGTERBRGRELTALFAPMBEFT AR & o
The maximum exposure to credlt risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the balance sheet.

/!I“ﬁv ﬁ)k 'ﬁ
L|qU|d|ty risk

%}P_mm FEERGE R AFLLDRERREAGTREG BRI AAERT L1

B E £ R R o

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient bank deposits and bank balances.
In the opinion of the Trustee, the Fund does not have any significant liquidity risk.

TAKET ARSI GARARM NI ] > 15 B Ep 3
BARNBEBOEFL L ARRDRENE o &12B ¥ N 1| !

&I P OB AT o
S s T R SR Rl

The table below analyses the Fund’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based

on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

*:2008£37 31 P > PAFEE G DB P A ATAeT
As at 31 March 2008, the maturity analysis of the financial liabilities is as follows:

2008 2007
5#t— # Less than one year
J& 1 278 Accruals 22,401 1,000
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3 MIA%EE ()
Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

AR & F1E (F)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) RERETEE STEAFR %

3.2

3.3

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

"fﬁﬁ FHEHN AR ERFRHEEAFALTANEG o FIND P ORFTEFF LLEHRF

AL o FERETEAA 2 XD FAFREBTRE Tj‘ BEAGE L O RENE R

ST E ISR RAE R o

Other than the bank deposits, the Fund has no significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

The held-to-maturity investments carry at a fixed coupon rate. The Fund’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. In the opinion of the Trustee, the
exposure to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk is considered to be low.

200837 31p o BFEAFT TR F N/ 2004880 5 g B FlR A %o Bl ER

FaRE N /1M43,20008 (= F R - #£:160, 0000 %) 0 @ EF) S 1T F AR LT r B A /R0 TR o

As at 31 March 2008, if interest rates on the bank deposits had been 200 basis points

higher/lower with all other variables held constant, surplus for the year would have been HK$43,200 (2007:
HK$160,000) higher/lower, as a result of higher/lower interest income on the bank deposits.

FEARGER
Capital risk management

ARAENTEFRFR > A FRALTSBE Y EIREVREAE - A 2R B LE R

R = -

The Fund’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue

as a going concern in order to provide returns for the Fund. The Fund’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

2T R

Fair value estimation

B2 efctifoll o 4 Pme o 54 R 0 RIRUREE 2T - (TR B R o R ARR
FHOREI A O HB FAT AR P RARLGRETEN AR EF AR ET @RGP HIF R

2L 5
R e

The carrying value less impairment provision of loans and receivables and payables are a

reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Fund for similar financial instruments, unless the effect of discounting is insignificant.
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4

Mat g 2 Ky
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Ffeder g MBFHT0 > TR EALHRTE R NFEFEE o s AT MERTAGHARES
mk LTI
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

A HARIED R EfrER R P B A R E IR RS AR - o g ER
TRMRERGOT AL FORG EFNE AR FOR Y frBRIAHET -

The Trustee makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

FIFP T
Held-to-maturity investments

CEER SRR X R FIRY rfﬁliiﬁﬁiﬁiJ»
FAMEDNSE o AR T E X J)E o 4T 0 57 Z)ETPF > 23
4 o

2 BRI P hhed
REZ I P g fe

F

The Trustee follows the guidance of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (“HKAS 39")
on classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-
maturity. This classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Trustee evaluates its
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

FRELATFLABEFHERIYMR T E MR anE B R T B2 FF L ERTIDNDP > B EAERERE
RAEEFTENL c LPERFTFANFTERT @ sl & A -

If the Trustee fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances as explained in HKAS
39, it will be required to reclassify the whole class as available-for-sale financial assets. The investments would
therefore be measured at fair value instead of amortised cost.
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S &gk & & 3 Financial instruments by category

AR EDERI L FET
The Fund’s financial instruments include the following:

¥ A Assets

>+2008£3" 31p 31 March 2008
FI3Pp R F (i 6)
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 6)

A N = D)

Interest-free loans (Note 7)

& 1241 4 Interest receivable

d2i6 3 B oA 1 &N B esE G (i 8)
Bank deposits with maturities of more than
three months and within one year (Note 8)
REZREZHF (q2 9)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)

gL T

¥ A Assets

*+2007%3* 31p 31 March 2007

i 4 B35 (/31 7) Interest-free loans (Note 7)

& 141 4 Interest receivable

A 3 B A 1 &P YT E A (R 8)
Bank deposits with maturities of more than

three months and within one year (Note 8)
REZREZRS (43 9)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)

Appendix 15
HFipyop [
kT R ] X
Held-to-maturity Loans and
investments receivables Total
5,963,026 - 5,963,026
- 236,882 236,882
- 133,366 133,366
- 2,100,000 2,100,000
- 77,623 77,623
5,963,026 2,547,871 8,510,897
Pz
) i
Loans and
receivables
284,358
52,201
1,200,000
6,831,627

8,368,186
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S &p1EAE (¥) Financial instruments by category (Continued)

et T
Appendix 15

Huwpisrp i

Other
financial
liabilities

f§ # Liabilities
»2008# 3% 31p 31 March 2008
J& 1 2c 38 Accruals 22,401
*2007#3* 31p 31 March 2007
J& 1 3c78 Accruals 1,000
6 # I 3 p e F Held-to-maturity investments
2008 2007
BRB DT o A S A 3,957,348 -
Listed in Hong Kong, at amortised cost
LR o A S A 2,005,678 -
Unlisted, at amortised cost
5,963,026 -
FLI P R FAEALHE
Held-to-maturity investments are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
7 % & B # Interest-free loans
2008 2007
47 1p %75 Balance at 1 April 343,733 457,659
* & B 2_:% 3 Repayments during the year (79,095) (113,926)
37 31p %7 Balance at 31 March 264,638 343,733
BT s el i
Less : Fair value adjustment and amortisation:
47 1p %73 Balance at 1 April -59,375 -97,692
Frah B L4~ 31,619 38,317
Interest income on amortisation of loans
37 31p %33 Balance at 31 March -27,756 -59,375
% 4 B 3x - 237 Interest-free loans - net 236,882 284,358
AR L R dniy Less: Current portion of interest-free loans (79,961) (80,522)
Lo # #%> Non-current portion 156,921 203,836
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7

w4584 (¥) Interest-free loans (Continued)

WUt e B g L R AR ARARL S e R E o 202008232 31p > & 4 Al 1678 &

(Z3F-# 1,084~ )G BHP T ERE - PEFRTHZ I BETHG F T RFESab L -
ARAEFEFG ERIEL TR RN R L PR AT

The interest-free loans that are less than four months past due are not considered impaired.

As at 31 March 2008, the interest-free loans of HK$1,167 (2007: HK$1,584) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent borrowers for whom there is no recent history of default. The Fund
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The ageing analysis of the interest-free loans is as follows:

2008 2007
Wi AF RE
Ageing of past due but not impaired
» B2 227 Upto4 months 1,167 1,584

*+2008# 2 200737 31p > A L EHEIMEAZHE -
The interest free loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollar at 31 March 2008 and 2007.

BEELPY  BRERGIERFR G RSEL P ERIIZ DT E o
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the receivables mentioned above.

AT 3BT oA 1E P TP LT AR

Bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and within one year

AAEIB? Al EP PP ZREFFHAPFTEENF 30282 FF - & 14.037); B EFaSTE
TP RTIR(ZFFE - & 131% ) 2202008% 2 200737 31p i~ L Hixo

The effective interest rate on the bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and
within one year is 3.02% (2007: 4.03%) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity of
79 days (2007: 31 days) and are denominated in Hong Kong dollar at 31 March 2008 and 2007.

i

REZREZRF
Cash and cash equivalents

2008 2007
4217 %4 Bank balances 17,623 31,627
3 TR B PSLET g AC
Bank deposits with maturities of three months or less 60,000 6,800,000
77,623 6,831,627
% B R % OB B b & -KPE Maximum exposure to credit risk 77,623 6,831,627

TIP3 AUPDPREFFIHRFTEENFLIL2B(ZFFE - £ 13918 2 E G

Tiopdhp 549 (2 FF - & 13%) > 202008% 2 200737 31p B~ G Hixo

The effective interest rate on bank deposits with maturities of three months or less is 1.20% (2007: 3.91%)
per annum; these deposits have an average maturity of 49 days (2007: 3 days) and are denominated in

Hong Kong dollar at 31 March 2008 and 2007.
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10 & & Funds

2006#4* 1p % Balance at 1 April 2006
AE RS Def|C|t for the year

2007# 3% 31p 2 2007#& 4% 1p 275
Balance at 31 March 2007 and 1 April 2007

rE R FAR Surplus for the year
2008# 3% 31p %% Balance at 31 March 2008

e T

Appendix 15
B E R e
w2 A EH FE AR R
(*it1)
Capital allocated
by the Vegetable
Marketing
Organization Accumulated
(Note) surplus Total
8,000,000 511,223 8,511,223
- (144,037) (144,037)
8,000,000 367,186 8,367,186
- 121,310 121,310
8,000,000 488,496 8,488,496

o

The balance represents capital allocated by the Vegetable Marketing Organization to support the operation of

iz
EHRLEFRAY AN A SN FAHF AL ENYE
Note:
the Fund.

11 ¥ER 2 R4

Cash used in operations

*E R F4/(4) Surplus/(deficit) for the year
2 % Adjustments for:

- 427 % 54 4 12 ~ Interest income on bank deposits

-EIIY P T L

Interest income on held-to-maturity investments
- PP ek T e

Amortisation of held-to-maturity investments
- sl L A e

Interest income on amortisation of interest-free loans

& EF £ %$: Changes in working capital:
-# 4 B 4% Interest-free loans
- 1 37 Accruals

¥ @ #7* 2R £ Cash used in operations

2008 2007

121,310 -144,037
-116,742 -339,146

-228,331 -

12,441 -
-31,619 -38,317
-242,941 -521,500
79,095 113,926

21,401 -
-142,445 -407,574
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